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KE,MPER
CPA GROUP..,

Certified Public Accountants and Consultants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Mayot and City Council
City of Morganfield, I(entucky

We have audited the accompanying fnanctal statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities and each majot fund, of the City of Morganfield, I(entuclry, as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

M an agem e n t 
t s Re sp on s i bili ty fo r th e Fin an ci al S t a t em e n t s

Management is tesponsible fot the pteparation and fair ptesentation of these financial
statemeflts in accordance with accounting pdnciples generaily accepted in the United States

of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of intetnal control
relevant to the preparation and fa:u ptesentation of financial statements that are free ftom
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Audi tor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the

United States of Amedca and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Gouernment Aaditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller Genetal of the United States. Those

standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assuance about

whether the financial statements are ftee fiom material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditot's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material rnisstatement of the financial

statements, whether due to fiaud or ertor. In making those risk assessments, the auditor

considers jnternal control relevant to the entity's preparation arrd fau presentation of the

financial statemeflts in order to design audit procedutes that are appropdate in the

cjrcumstances, but not fof the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes

evaluating the apptopdateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant ,..orrrrtirrg estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the financial statements.

$7e believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and apploPdate to provide

a basis for out audit opinions.

101 E. Main Street . P. O. Box 528 . Morganfreld,KY 42437

Phone: (270) 389-1239 Fax: (270) 389-4662 kempercpa.com

s(



Opinions

In out opinion, the financial statements referted to above present faidy, in all material
resPects, the respective fnanctal position of the governmental activiues, the business-type
activities, and each ma)ot fund of the City of Morganfield, I(entucky, as of June 30,2020,
and the respective changes rn financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for
the yeat then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America,

Othet Matters

Re q aire d S upp le n e n tary I nfo rn atio n

Accounting pdnciples generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management's discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 13, budgetary comparison
rnformation on pages 61 through 62, schedule of proportionate share of net pension habiliry
and contributions on pages 63 through 65, and schedule of OPEB liabiiity and conuibutions
on pages 66 through 68, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
infotmauon, although not a patt of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounung Standards Board, who considers it to be an essend.al part of
financial repotting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or histotical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary rnformation in accotdance with audrting standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information fot consistency with
management's tesponses to out inqufuies, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained dunng our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express
an optruon or provide any assurance on the informauon because the limited procedures do
not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opiruon or provide any assuraflce.

Othet Repotting Requircd by Govemment Auditing Standatds

In accotdance with Gouernment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
February 5'h, 2027, on our consideration of the City of Morganfield, I(entucky's internal
control over ftnancial repoting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, conttacts, grant agteements and other matters. The puqpose of that report
is to describe the scope of out testing of intemal control over frnancial reporting, and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Gouernment Auditing Standarh in considering the Ciry of
Morganfield's internal control over frnancial repoting and compliance.

(-".f C% N,v.*p LL?

I(empet CPA Group LLP
Cetified Public Accountants and Consultants

Morganfield, I(entucky
February 5,2021
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Cmv 0r MoRGANFTELD
130 East Main Street

P.O. Box 420
Morganfi eld, Kentucky 42437 -0420

Tel. (270)389-2525
TDD (800)648-60s6

Fax (270)389-2157
e-mail cityadm@att.net

Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30,2020

As management of the City of Morganfield, we offer readers of the City's financial statement this overview

and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. It is our intent that

these comments provide all parties intetested in the City's financial condition, especially the citizens of
Morganfield, a better undetstandj.ng of the City's opetations and financial condidon. !7e encourage readets

to consider the information ptesented here in conjunction with additional information that we have

furnished in the City's financial statements, which begin on page 76 of this fepoft.

Financial Hiohliohts

The assets and deferred outflows of the City of Morganfield exceeded its liabilities and deferred

inflows at the close of the most recent fiscal yeat by apptoximately $10.9 million (net positon). The

majority of the City's net position is invested in capital assets of approximately $17.4 million. $0'40

million is restricted for specific puq)oses. The temaining amount of less than $0.1 million (exciuding

net pension and OPEB liability) is unrestticted and may be used to meet the governement's ongoing

obligations to citizens and creditors in accordance with the City's fund designation and fiscai

policies.

The City's total net position decreased approximately (fil,724,000) during the most recent fi.scal year,

approximately ($744,000) decrease from the City's "govetnmental activities" and ($380,000) decrease

from the "business-type activities."

o The City's net investment in capital assets increased apptoximately $0.2 million during the most

recent f,scal year, to approximately $17.4 million.

o As of June 30,2020, unassigned fund balance for the Genetal Fund was $238,075 ot 6.1'50/o of total

general fund expenditutes

Overview of Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial

statements. The City's basic financial statements are comprised of three components: (1) govemment-

wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the financial statements. This

report also contains other supplementary infotmation in addition to the basic financial statements

themselves.

Govemment-wide Financial Statenents- The government-wide financial statements are designed to

ptovide readers with a broad overview of the City's finances in a rnatarLer similar to a private-sector

t,rrirr"rr. They report on both governmental and business-type activities combined.

"A 4rnut Nxilnft, i)batat}rg 6.7t9"
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The Statenent of Net Position presents informauon on a1l of the City's assets, deferred outflows of
resources, Iiabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Net
position is an rmportant measure of the City's overall frnancial health. Over time, increases or decreases
in net position may serve as a useful indicatot of whether the financial position of the City is improving
or deteriorating.

The Statement of Actiuities presents information showing how the government's net position changed
during the fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the undedying event giving rise
to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses afe reported
in the statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected
taxes and earned but unused compensated absences).

Both of the govetnment-wide financial statements distinguish funcdons of the City that are principally
supported by taxes and intetgovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that
are intended to recovet all ot a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-
type activities). The City's govetnmental activities include general government and administration, public
safety, roads, tecreation, sanitation and social services, The City's business-tFpe activities include gas and
water and sewet services and opetations. The government-wide financial statements can be found on
pages 16 -17 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements- A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control
over resources that have been segregated fot specific actrviues or objectives. The City, like other local
and state governments, uses fund accounting to ensue and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal tequirements. The funds of the City can be divided into t'wo categories: governmental funds and
proprietary funds.

Govemmental Funds- Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same funcdons
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
govetnment-wide financial statements, govetnmenal fund financial statements focus on current sources
and uses of spendable resoutces, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the
fiscal year. Such infotmation may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing
tequirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrowet than that of the govemment-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
informauon presented fot governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may bettet understand the long-term impact of the government's neaf-term financing
decisions. Both the govemmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances ptovide a reconciliation to facilitate this compadson between
governmental fu nds and governmental activities.

The City maintains three individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the government fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes tn fund balances fot the General and the Local Govelnment Economrc Assistance funds, both
of which ate considered maior funds. The other funds are combined into a single, aggregated
presentad.on. The governmental funds financial statements can be found on pages 79-22 of this report.

5
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Overview of Financial Statements, Continued

Proprietarv Funds- The City maintains two types of proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are used ro

-

report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The City uses proprietary funds to account for its gas and water and sewer operations.
Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the
City's vadous functions. The City does not maintain an intemal service.

Ptoprietary funds provide the same tfpe of information as the government-wide financial statements,
only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the Gas
and Watet and Sewet funds since all. are considered to be major funds of the City. The internal seryice
fund is in a single aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. The basic
ptoprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 23 - 25 of this report.

Notes to the Frnancial Statements- The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided rn the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to
the financial statements can be found on pages 27 - 59.

Other Information- In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents certain required supplementary information concerning the City's govemmental funds
performance compared to budget, the City's fu^di"g of its obligation to provide pension/OPEB benefits
to its employees and Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. The required supplemenrary
information can be found on pages 61- 68 of this report.

Government-wide Financial Analvsis

Net Position

As noted eaflier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the City's financial position.
The City of Motganfield's assets exceeded liabfities by $10.9 million as of June 30,2020.

The latgest pottion of the City's net position, approximately $17.4 million, reflects its investment in
capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, equipment, improvements, construction in progress and inftastructure
acquired since the impiementation of GASB 34), less any outstanding debt used to acquire those assets.
The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens, consequendy these assets are not
available for futute spending, and with exception of business-tFpe assets, do not generate ditect revenue
for the City. Although the City's investment in its capital assets is tepoted net of related debt, it should
be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the
capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. An additional portion of the City's
net position, approximately $0.40 million, represents resoruces that are subject to extemal resttictions on
how they may be used.

6



Govemment-wide Financial Analysis, Continued

The following table teflects the condensed summary of net position as ofJune 30,2O2O and 2079:

Net Position
(in thousands)

Govemmental Activities Business-Type Activities Totai Govemment

Current Assets

Capial Assers

Toal Assets

Ss

2020 2019 2020

822

20,759

2019 2020 2019
912

2,877

1277

2,977

$ $ 789

20,038

fi 1,734

23,036

$ 2,066

22,915

3,789 4,154 20,981 20,827 24,770 24,981

Deferred ourflows of resources

Current Liabiliues

N on- current Liabilities

Total Liabiiities

1,470 1,247 740 2,357 1,987887

488328

5,399 4,639

1,113

8,555

601

8,416

1,441

13,954

1,089

13,055

5,727 5,127 9,668 9,077 15,395 14,144

Deferred inflows of resources

Net Position:

Net Investrnent in Capial Assets

Restricted

Unrestricted

874555558

369

316 286 841

2,868

(4,262)

2,960

475

(3,616)

74,496

40

Q,653)

1.4,362

22

Q,120)

17,364

409

(6,91s)

1'7 )))
497

(s,736)

Toal Net Position $ (1,02s) $ Q81) 11,883 $ 12264 $ 10,858 $ 11,983$

As of June 30,2020 the City is able to report positive balances in the business-type activities but not for
the governmental activities, as a whole the total government was able to report positive net position. The
City's combrned net position decteased to $10.9 million from $12. million as a result of the change in net
position reflected in the next table.

7



Government-wide Financial Analvsis. Continued

Change in Net Position

The following table reflects a summary of the revenues and expenses from the City's activities as ofJune
30,2020 and2079:

Change in Net Position
(m thousand$

GovemmentalActivities Business-TypeActivities Total Government

2020 201,9 2020 2019 2020 201,9

Revenues:

Program Revenues:

Charges fot services $

Opetalng gtants and contribs

Capial grants afld contribs

General Revenues:

Taxes and related revenues

Intergovernmental

Franchise fees and licenses

Other tevenues

506

79

$ 518

89

3

$ 5,469 $ 5,966 $

206 391

5,975

79

206

$ 6,483

7,342

416

226

294

89

394

7,392

484

237

252

7,392

484

237

252

1,,342

416

226

294

Total Revenues 2,950 2,888 5,675 6,357 8,625 9,244

Expenses:

General and Administrative

Public Safety:
Police

Fte
Highways and streets

Public works

Parks and tecreation

Interest and long-term debt

Gas

Water and sewer

578

7,437

936

7,175

449

54

566 578

7,431

936

7,775

449

54

7,623

3,504

566

7,368

829

7,724

447

61

1,368

829

1,124

447

61

1,623

3,504

2,075

3,473

2,075

3,473

Total Expenses

Increase(decrease) in net

position before transfers

Trarsfers

lncrease(decrease) in net position
Net Positioq begiffxng of year

4,623 4,394 5,548

809 (1,125)(1,506)

7,123

(384)

9,7505,1.27

548

9,942

(1,673) (6e8)

928

Q4s)

(e28)

(380)

(1,123)

(31s) (1,125)

(1)

(6e8)

(281) 103 12,264 12,578 77,982 12,687

$ (1,026) $ (281) $ 11.8q4 $ y7q L 10,8s7 $ 11,e83

8
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Govemment-wide Financial Analysis, Continued

The City of Motganfield's overall net position decreased approximately $1.,1.24,000 ftom the prior fiscal
year based on City opetations. The teasons fot this overall decrease are discussed in the following
sections for govemmental and business-type activities.

Governmental Activities: Govetnmental activities decreased the City's net position by approxrmately
$744,000. Taxes and related revenues, the largest govemmental category, wele $1.39 million or 47o/o of
total governmental revenues. Revenues ftom governmental activities total $2.95 million, ot34o/o, of the
total City tevenue, Taxes and telated revenue increased from the ptevious yeatby approximately $50,000
pnmadly due to increases in assessed values of ptoperty.

Certain tevenues arc gefletlted that are specific to governmental progtam activity. These totaled
approximately $506,000. The following table shows expenses and progtam revenues of the governmental
acuvities for the years endedJune 30, 2020 and2079:

Net Cost of Governmental Activities
(in thousands)

Total cost of seryices Net cost of services

2020 2019 2020 2019
Expenses:

General and administrative $

Public Safety:

Police

Fire

Highways and streets

Public Works

Parks and recreation

Total Expenses ff 4,621. $ 4,395 _$_i!1_ $ 3,530

As previously noted, total expenses from governmental activities were approximately $4.62 million, an
increase of apptoximately $226,000 or 4.90o/o ftom the previous year. This increase was due primady to
increases in personnel expenses (salaries and beneflts) in the highway and streets, and public works
departments. However, net costs of these services totaled $3.85 million. The difference represents direct
revenues received from chatges for these services of approximately $506,000 and operating grants and
contribuuons of approximately $79,000. Taxes and other general revenues of approximately $3.11 million
were collected to cover these net costs.

Business-tFpe Activities: Business-type activities decreased the City's net position by approximately
$380,000. This dectease was primady due to ongoing capital improvements/repairs and transfers to the
Genetal Fund consistent with prior years.

s78$s66$396$lrO

7,437

936

7,1,7 5

449

54

7,369

829

7,1,24

447

61

7,394

893

7,77 5

(s3)

49

7,324

784
7,1,24

(se)

46
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Govemment-wide Financial Analvsis. Continued

Total tevenues of the business-ti?e activities decteased approximately $497,000 or 9o/o. This decrease was
pnmarily related to decteases in gas revenue. City gas rates are adjusted monthly based on the cost to the
City.

Total expenses of the business-qrpe activities decreased approximately $421,000 or 8.2o/o. This decrease
was pdmarily telated to the reduction in gas purchased for resale.

Financial Analvsis of the Citv's Funds

Governmental Funds- The focus of the City of Morganfield's governmental funds is to provide
information ofl neat-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is
useful in assessing the City's financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a

useful measure of a government's net resoutces available for discretionary use as they represent the
portion of fund balance which has not yet been limited to use for a particular pupose by either an

external partf , the City itself, or a group or individual that has been delegated authority to assign
resources for use for particular pruposes by the City Councii.

At the end of the current fiscal yeat, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of apptoximately $0.61 million. Apptoximately 360/o of this total amount constitutes unassigned
fund balance. Approximately 3oh represents assigned fund balance for security bonds, The remainder of
the fund balance is testricted to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has already
been resfticted 1) to provide for construction and mai.ntenance of city streets and sidewalks of
approxrmately $155,000 and 2) to provide for capital ouday and economic development of approximately
$214,000.

Governmental funds total fund balance decreased approximately $242,000 compared to a decrease of
$186,000 ftom the prior year, pdm"nly due to increased expenses in the municipal road aid fund for
contract street work.

Proorietarv Funds- the Ciw's otoorietarv fund statements orovide the same tt,roe of information found in
the government-wide financial statements, but in mote detail.

Net position of the respective proprietary funds are Gas of approximately $.93 million and Water and
Sewer of approximately $11.0 million. The total of this net position of approximately $11.9 million
equals the total net position of business-type activiues in the government-wide financial statements.
Change rn net position for enterprise funds tn 2020 were as follows: Gas fund decreased approximately
$253,000; 'VTater and Sewer decreased approximately $127,000. This total change in net posiuon of
approximately $380,000 equals the change in net position for the business-type activities in the
government-wide frnancial statements.

l0

As noted pteviously, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.



Financial Analysis of the City's Funds. Continued

General Fund Budgetary Highlights- the City Council made amendments to the odginal General and
Local Government and Economrc Assistance funds budgets approved by the City Council. These
amendments were made to ptopedy appropdate unbudgeted revenues and expenses.

Ovetall, the General fund revenues wete under budget by approximately $299,000 and budgeted
expenditures were under budget by approximately $58,000. The LGEA fund revenues were under budget
by approxtmately $28,000 and budgeted expenses exceeded actual expenditures by approximately
$315,000. The amended General fund budget was approved with anticipated expenses exceeding
anticipated revenues. The diffetence was to come fiom transfers from proprietary funds and reseryes.

Budgetary concetns for the futute include the potential reduction in State funding to the City

Capital Assets and Debt Adminisuation

Capital Assets - The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as

of June 30,2020 amounted to approximately $17.4 million (net of accumulated depreciation and related
debt). The investment in capttal assets includes land, buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment,
vehicles, construction in progtess and infrastructure acquired since the implementation of GASB 34. The
City's net capital assets fot the current fiscal year increased approximately $0.2 million or 1..8o/o due to
curtent year additions exceeding disposals for the fiscal year.

Major capital events during the current fiscal year included the following:
o City replaced lights on the Pony League baseball field at a cost of $131,000 of which the Union

County Fiscal Court paid $80,000 of the total cost using HB 200 Coal Severance funds.
. City upgraded piping rn the basement of the l7astewater Treatment Plant at a cost of $128,000 and

repaired Clarifier Number 1 at a cost of approximately $166,000.
o Water Treatment Plant completed tepair to the low service pump area for. around $47,000.
. City was awarded Disctetionary Road Aide money and repair 5 sections of streets and Park Street

fot atound $143,000.
o Sewer l-ift station by the Elementary school was upgrade for $6,600 and eliminated one to two trips

a week that Public Works employees were making to keep station running.
o North Union Avenue Sewet Extension to serve eight future Habitat home was completed at an

approximate cost of $44,000.
o Fire Department living quatters and kitchen upgrade to the original 1970's build was completed for

about $16,000 with help of City of Morganfield Fire Deparment staff.
o The City was awarded an Delta Regional Authority grant of $256,500 to help fund the Swimming

Pool Main on Main Street replacement ptoject which replaced water lines dating back to the eady
1900"s. The total cost of the project was around $446,000.

Sevetal capital ptojects related watet transmission and sewer inflow/rnfiltration are in development and
estimated to cost several million dollars. The City has identified the projects of need and are in planning
and development stages. City is explodng potential funding sources including state funded loans and
grants to assist in financing of these future projects.

11



Capital Assets and Debt Administration. Continued

Addruonal informauon on the City's capital assets can be found in Note 6 on pages 40 - 41 of this report.

Debt Administration- At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Morganfield had two outstanding
loans with the I(entucky Infrasttucture Authodty (KIA) and one outstanding loan with USDA Rural
Development. The City has a $1,300,000 line of credit through United Community Bank to assist in the
cost of various capital ptojects. There was an outstanding balance of $205,956 on the line of credit at
United Community Bank as of June 30, 2020. Additional information regarding the City of
Morganfield's short-term debt can be found in Note 7 on page 43 of this report.

Other Matters

The following factots are expected to have a sigruficant effect on the City's financial position and will be
taken into account rn developing future fiscal year budgets.

In Decembet 201.7, the City enteted into another "agreed order" with the Natural Resoutce and
Environmental Protection Cabinet of the Commonwealth of I(entucky to identi$, and eliminate all
significant sources of inflow/infiltration into the sewer collection system. The City is still under this
Letter of Agreement from the Kentuclry Division of Water and has drafted a Combined Sewer Overflow
Long Term Compliance Plan with the purpose to attain compliance by a sedes of phased construction
projects to separate all combined sewets rn the City. Consruction of the entire project began in the
spring 2012 and is scheduled for completion in fiscal year 2022.Total cost of these projects is estimated
at $11,500,000 with the first phase completed in the spring 2013 for approximately $4.2 million, Phase II
was completed rn summer of 201,7 fot $4,093,527 and Phase III is estimated to cost $3,240,000. We plan
to bid Phase III in the summer of 2021, and construction is scheduled to begin in the fall of 2021 andbe
completed by Jtly 1, 2022. The City used a $2,642,200 fund "A" loan from Kentucky Infiastructure
Authority and received gtant proceeds totaling $1,000,000 for the completion of Phase II. A watet rate
increase of 25o/o was tequired by loan agencies in order to keep City frscally viable while paying loan
payments. The City has applied and was awarded a USDA Rural Development loan for Phase IIi in the
amount of fi3,240,000 with ^ grarnt of 33oh of the $3,240,000, savrng the City $1,061,000. Derdck
Engrneenng has been hued to complete this project as they did Phase I and IL The City was required
and put into place an annual 5o/o :.ate increase for water and sewer in order to completed this loan
applicaflon process.

The City has contracted with Stand Associates, Inc. to assist them in developing and implementing a

plan to address the cortective measures tecommended by the Natural Resources and Environmental
Ptotection Cabinet which includes replacing the sewer lines and manholes from the treatment plant
thtough most of the Camp Breckiruidge [oL C"rp) area. The estimated cost opinion is g4,800,00b for
sewer replacement and sewer rehab for the collection sewer. The trunk sewer will have to be sized after
the collection sewer is completed. The pteliminary cost for this is $3,800,000. Both include 25o/o

contingencies. In order to fund the initial study and design of the Camp Breckenridge fob Corp) sewer
rehab project, the City applied for a Fund "B" Loan through the I(entucky Infrastructure Authority in
the amount of $260,000 in April of 2076. On May 5,2076 the City request was approved. As of June
30,2020, the approximate principle balance owed on this loan is $152,331. Strand Associates, Inc.
completed cleaning and running cameras through the existing sewer system. In addition to the cameras
they conducted smoke and dye tests as well to conclude their study. Union County has assisted
Motganfield in secudng fi779,646 in funding to teplace the wotst section of sewer lines in the Martin
View Estates area. In addition, most of the equipment and structures at the Waste Water Treatment

t2



Othet Matters. Continued

Plant has reached their useful life and needs replacement to enable the plant to stay in compliance.
GRADD, Union County Fiscal Coutt and Strand Associates, Inc. ate working together to secure
funding for this $14,500,000 project which will more than likely be done in Phases.

Reouest for Infotmation

This financial repot is designed to provide our citizens, customers, investors and creditors with a general
overview of the City's finances, If you have questions about this report or need additional information,
contact Gary Vetter, Morganfi.eld City Adminisuator, 

^t 
P. O. Box 420, Morganfield, KY 42437, cail,

(270) 389-2525, or email at crryadm@att.net.
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CITY OF MORGANFIELD, KENTUCKY
Statement of Net Position

]une 30, 2020

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, net:

Utiliues

Receivables, net:

Intergove rnmental

Taxes

Franchise fees

Other

Other current assets

Restdcted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Capital assets:

Non-depreciable

Depreciable

Less: accumulated depreciation

Total assets

Govemmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities Total

$ 650,035 $

7,037

3,877

174,22s

20,550

17,610

38,319

193,232 $

49,149

205,956

3,972

329,407

40,388

843,267

56,186

209,833

174,225

20,550

21,582

367,726

40,388

503,085

5,415,325

(3,041,112)

628,816

34,402,857

(14,872,6s7)

1,131,901

39,818,182

(17 ,913,7 6e)

3,788,951 20,981,121 24,770,072

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
l)eferred outflows related to pension/OPEB

Liabilities:
Accounts payable

Utility deposits

Accrued liabilities

Unearned revenue

Othcr curent liabilities

Compensated absences

Short-term debt
Liabilities payable from resricted assets:

Acctued interest

Non-current liabilities :

Net Pension Liability
Net OPEB Liability
Notes payable

Compensated absences

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflow of Resources:
Deferred inflows related to pension/OPEB

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets

Restdcted for:

Capital proiects

Special proiects

Unrestricted

(1,025,47s) $ 11,883,465 $ 10,857,990

1,470,104 886,555 2,356,659

7 6,183

130,492

9,899

2,432

102,263

7,328

4,323,614

1,056,927

2,444

15,234

348,294

167,392

47,623

87,683

429,002

33,011

424,477

167,392

178,115

9,899

2,432

189,946

436,330

33,011

2,606,030

675,362

5,233,531

40,178

6,929,644

1,732,289

5,235,975

55,412

5,726,816 9,668,106 15,394,922

557,714 316,105 873,819

2,867,526

368,766

(4,261,767)

14,496,483

40,388

(2,653,407)

17,364,009

40,388

368,766

(6,915,17 4)

$

The accompanying notes are an integral patt ofthe financial statemeots
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CITY OF MORGANFIELD, KENTUCKY
Statement of Activities
For the fiscal year ended June 30r 2020

Functions/ Expcnses
Charges for

Seruices

Revenues

Operating
Grants and

Conributions

Capital
Grants and

Conributions
Govemmental

Activities
Business-Type

Activities

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Govemmental activities:

Genera.l md administrative

Public safety:

Police

Fire

I'Iighways and strets
Public works

l'arks and rccreation
'lbtal grvernmental activities

$ 577,586 $ 181,952 $ $

Total

$ (3es,634)$ (39s,634) $

(1,394,296)

(893,499)

(1,175,211)

52,906

1,430,670

935,912

1,175,211

448,513

53,521

36,174

42,413

(1,394,296)

(893,499)

(1,17s,211)

52,906

(48,569)

501,419

4,952 (48,s69)

4,621,413 688,322 18,786 (3,854,304) (3,8s4,304)

Business-type activities:
Gas

Water and swer
1,623,269

3,503,694

2,436,417 813,141

Q65,s46)
5,126,964 517,602

205,956 _
205,956Total business-type activities

Total govcmment 748,377 $ 6,1s6,e31 $ 78,786 $ 205,e56 (3,854,304) 541,602

General revenues:

Tues and related revenues:

Property

Insurmce

Motor vehicle

Bmk Deposit
Other

Frmchise fees

Intergovemmmtal
Investmmt income

Gain on sale of municipal property

Note proceeds

Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net position

Net position, beginning of year

810,533

371,005

112,559

56,605

40,438

237,474

483,821

1,697

112

67,691

928,212

810,533

371,005

112,559

56,605

40,438

237,474

483,821

1,974

112

61,691

271

(928,212)

3,110,147 2,182,211

(1,124,491)

Q81,317)

(1,02s,47 s)

12,263,799 11,982,482

$ 10,857,990$ 11 ,883,465Net position, end ofyear $

-Ihe accompanying notes are an integlal part ofthe financial statements
17

813,147

Q.65,s46)

547,602

1,032,192

5,468,609

(3,306,703)

(927,935)

(744,1s8) (380,334)
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CITY OF MORGANFIELD, KENTUCKY
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

June 30,2020

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, net:

Utilities

Receivables, net:

Intergovernmental

Taxes

Franchise fees

Othet

Other current assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances:

Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Other current liabil-ities

Compensated absences

Accrued liabilities

Uneamed revenue

Total liabilities

Fund Balances:

Restricted for:

Special projects

Assigned

Unassigned

$ 281.,269 fi 368,766 $ 650,035

7,037 7,037

General
Fund

Local
Government
Economic
Assistance

Total
Govetnmental

Funds

3,877

717,822

20,550

73

38,319

3,877

117,822

20,550

73

38,3t9

$ 468,946 $ 368,766 $ 83l,ll.z

$ $ $76,183

2,432

1 1,865

130,493
g,Bgg

76,193

2,432

1 1,965

730,493

9,899

230,971. 230,871.

20,000

21,8,075

368,766 368,766

20,000

218,075

Total fund balances 239,075 368,766 606,841

$ 468,946 $ 368,766 _$ wJn_

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fi.nancial statements
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CITY OF MORGANFIELD, KENTUCI(
Reconciliation of the Govemmental Funds
Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position

]une 30, 2020

Total governmental fund balance per fund financial statements

Amounts reported fot governmental activities in the statement of net position are different
because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources and
therefore are not reported in the governmental funds balance sheet. The cost of the assets

is $5,918,410, net of accumulated depreciation of ($3,041,112).

Other assets are not available to pay fot current period expenditures and, therefore, are

deferred in the funds:

Taxes receivable

Setdement of vendor credit on equipment

Some liabilities are not due and payable in the curent pedod and thetefore are not
reported as liabfities in the governmental funds balance sheet. Those liabilities 

^tyeat-end consist of:

Notes payable:

Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Net Pension Liability
Net OPEB Liability
Compensated absences

Net position of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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0,328)
Q,444)

(4,323,614)

(1,056,927)

(705,632)

$ 606,841

2,977,299

56,403

17,539

(5,495,945)

912,390

$ (1,025,475)

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources telated to pensions/OPEB are applicable to
future periods and, therefore, are not reportable in govemmental funds:

Deferred outflows of resources represents contributions subsequent to plan
measuremeot date. 7,470,104

Defered inflows of resources represent difference between projected and actual
investment earnings. (557,714\



CITY OF MORGANFIELD, KENTUCKY
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the fiscal year ended June 30,2020

General
Fund

Local
Government
Economic
Assistance

Total
Governmental

Funds
Revenues:

Taxes and related revenues:

Properry

Insurance

Motor vehicle

Bank Deposit

Other

Service charges and fees

Licenses

Franchise fees

Intergovernmental

Miscellaneous

Investment income

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:

General and administrative

Public safery:

Police

Fire

Highways and streets

Public works

Parks and recreation

Debt Service

Principal

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) o[ revenues over

expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)

Note proceeds

Sale of municipal properry

Transfers in

Transfers out

Total other financing sources

Net change in fund balances

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end ofyear

$$ 810,534

371,005

1,12,559

56,403

40,438

513,622

5,850

237,474

86,395

168,850

616

476,211

1,081

810,534

371,005

71,2,559

56,403

40,439

513,622

5,950

237,474

562,606

168,850

7,697

$

2,403,746 477,297 2,881,037

512,608

1,257,690

666,231

863,753

448,513

76,208

7,328

104,434

749,853

99,580

512,608

1,257,690

666,231

1,013,606

448,513

76,208

7,329

204,015

3,870,765 249,433 4,120,198

(1,467,019) 227,858 (1,239,161)

67,697

7,720

1,637,106

(37s,000) (333,8e3)

67,691

1,120

7,637,106

(708,893)

997,0231,330,9\7 (333,8e3)

(136,103)

37 4,1.7I

(106,03s)

474,801

(242,138)

848,979

$ 238,075 $ 368,766 $ OOo,a+r

The accompanying riotes are an integral part of these financial statements
21



CITY OF MORGANFIELD, KENTUCKY
Reconciliation of the Govetnmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditutes, and
Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities
Fot the fiscalyear endedJune 30r2020

Net change in fund balance per fund financial statements

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different
because:

Capital oudays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of these assets is allocated over their useful lives as

depreciation expense. This is the amount of capital assets additions recorded in the
current period.

Depreciation expense on capital assets is reported in the statement of activities, but they
do not require the use ofcurrent financial resources. Therefore, depreciation expense is

not reported as an expenditure in governmental funds.

Some revenues will not be collected for several months after the City's fiscal yeat end.
These are not considered "available" revenues in the governmental funds until received,
Change in amount deferred on fund statements.

Governmental funds report the proceeds on sales/disposals of capital assets as increases
to financial resources, whereas the statemeflt of activities reports only the gain on the
saie/drsposal. Thus, the change in net position differs from the change in fund balance by
the cost of the assets sold.

The issuance of iong-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental
funds, but issuing debt increases long-term liabiliues in the statement of net position
Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of activities. This is the amount
by which repayments exceeded proceeds.

In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses, compensated absences, are

measured by the amounts earned during the year. In the governmental funds, however,
expenditures for these items are measured by the amount of financial resources used
(essentialiy, the amounts actually paid). \Mhen the earned amount exceeds the paid
amount, the difference is a reduction in the reconciliation; when the paid amount exceeds
the earned amount, the difference is an addition to the reconcfiation.

The net pension liability and related deferred outflows and inflows of resources are an
obligation of the City of Motganfield not payable from current year resoutces and not
reported as an expenditure of the currentyear. In the Statement of Activities, these costs
represent expeflses of the current year.

Change in net position of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integtal part of these financial statements
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fi (242,138)

204,01.5

(185,216)

(1,008)

(548,709)

202

3287

21.,368
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CITY OF MORGANFIELD, TENTUCtrY
St t€medt ofN€r Posirion
Pmprietary Fund!
lnne n,20m

Busil1ess-

Vetcr.nd

Cash and cash eguivalents

Accounts receir"able, netr

Utilicies

Intergovernmen tal

Other
Other current assets

'l otal cutrent assets

Non-cur.enr liabiliti€s:
Not€s Payable

N€t Pension Uability
Net OPEB Liabiliry
Compensated absences

'fotal non curtent liabilitics

Tot.l Iiabilitics

N.. Polirion:
Net i.i.estmeflt in capital assets

Restacted for
Crpit,t prciects

557

12564

x5,956
3,415

256,U3

205,956

3,912

3D,4t)1

Total

$ 113,695 $ 193,231

41,464 49,149

621,374 78t,715

s 1t,536

7,685

160,343

Rcstricted a.6etsl

Cash and cash equi \.alen ts

Li.bilitic! pay.ble &om rcst icred assct

Total restricted asscts

C.pit l Assersl

Non-d€preciable

Depreciable

Less: accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets

D€ferred Oudloes of Reeourcc3:

Dcaeted outnows related to pension/OPEB

Li.bilitic8l
Curreat liabilities:

Accounts payable

Utility deposirs

Compensated absences

i\cffued liabilities

Short-term dcbt

lot,l currcnr liabilitics

5,329,911

(3,922,014)

596,59r

29,O1?.88(,

628,816

34,4t)4851

(14,8't465n

4r),lllu 40,388

40,388 40,388

(l0,950,643)

t,4,10,182 18,718,834 20,159,016

1,6tn,524 19,31i0,597 20,981,120

167,017 719,538 886,555

44218

94,028

20,949

9,539

$4,On
73,364

66,7v
38,084

429,1X2

v8,294
167,392

87,683

47,623

429,m2

168,734 911,260 1,079,994

l3,0ll 33,011

33,011 33,011

485,301

116,033

13,322

5,233,531

2,120,129

559)29

26,856

5,233,531

2,606pn
675, 2

40,178

614,656 1,91t),445 8,555,10r

783,390 8,884,716 9,668,10(,

Defcrred Inllow of Resourcesl
Defer.ed i.flows.elated topcnsio./OPEB 50,945

1,440,182

2('5,160 316,105

13,056,302 14 496,483

40,388

1e144411)

40,388

(z6s3,4OT)(506,976)

s 933,206 I 10,950,259 $ 11,883,465

Thc accompanying notes ue m integd paa of these Enancial st*€menrs
23
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CITY OF MORGANFIELD, KENTUCKY
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
Proprietary Funds
For the fiscalyear endedJune 30r2020

Operating revenues:

Charges for services

Senrce line and meter installation

Miscellaneous

$

Total operating revenue

Operating expenses:

Salaries and labor

Telephone

Office supplies and expense

Natural gas purchased

Insurance and bonds

Reparrs and maintenance

kgal and accounting

Employee benefits and payroll taxes

Gas and oil
Electricity

Consultant fees

Uniform expense

Depreciation

Chemicals

Other operating expenses

Bad debt expense

Total operating expenses

Operating income

Non-operating revenues (expenses):

Investment income

Gain Qoss) on sale/disposal of assets

Interest expense

Total non-operadng revenues (expenses)

Income (oss) before contributions and transfers

Capital Grants

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total contributions and transfers

Change in net position:

Net Position:

Beginning ofyear

Business- Activities

Gas

Water and

Sewer Total

2,421,897

13,8t2
708

2,986,754

37,827

7,611

5,408,651

51,639

8,319

$ $

2,436,417 5,469,609

189,707 824,238
1'' )1)

22,218

1,013,945

12,272

34,265

932,305

94,696

304,018

13,850

7,024,460

21,153

298,442

78,279

18,849

946,005

176,602

33,719

7,426

12,047

932,30s

14,401

129,690

2,750

205,486

8,307

9,766

0

80,294

174,328

1 1,100

818,974

72,846

288,677

78,279

18,849

834,660

776,231

25,990

8,062

111,345

371

7,729

(636)

1,623,269 3,387,018 5,010,288

873,747 Q54,826) 458,321

27725627

(116,676) (116,676)

21, (1,1,6,420) (116,399)

341,922813,169 (471,246)

516

(1,066,534)

205,956

805,887

(668,082)

205,956

806,403

,734,616)

(1 ,066,077) 343,762 Q22,256)

Qs2,849) (127,484) (380,334)

1,186,055 11,077,744 12,263,799

$ 933,206 $ 10,9s0,25e $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these frnancial satements
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E,nd of year 11,883,465

3,032,792



CITY OF MORGANFIELD, KENTUCKY
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Cash flows from opetating activities:
Receipts from customers

Payments to suppliers

Payments to employees

Cash flows from non-capital financing
activities:
Transfers in
Transfers out

Net cash provided (used) by non-capital

frnancing activities

Caeh flows from capital and related
financing activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets

Principal payments on debt

Interest paid on debt

Grants and capital contributions

Proceeds from debt

Net cash used by capital and related

financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment income

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash aod cash equivalents, end of year

Reconciliation of total cash and cash equivalents:

Current assets- cash and cash equivalents

Restricted assets- cash and cash equivalents

Business-Type Activities

Gas

Water &
Sewer Total

$
q

$2,460,915

(1,11s,e23)

Q26,876)

3,008,755

(660,178)

(1,413,253)

5,469,669

(1 ,77 6,1_01)

(1,740,129)

Net cash provided by operathg activities 1,018,116 935,323 1,953,+39

516

(1,066,534)

805,887

(668,082)

806,403

(1,134,616)

(1,066,017) 137,805 (928,212)

(1,443) 0,045,100)

Q18,5e4)
(116,676)

(1,046,543)

(218,5e4)

(116,676)

205,956 205,956

(1,443) L!4,414) (1,17s,85?

21 256 277

21, 256

(49,324)

128,860

001,029)

255,113

0s0,3s3)

383,972

q 79,536 $ 154,083 $ 233,679

S 79,536 $ 113,695

40,388

193,231

40,388

$

s 79,536 $ 154,083 $ 233,619

The accompanyiag not€s are an integral part of these financial statemeots
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CITY OF MORGANFIELD, KENTUCKY
Statement of Cash Flows, Continued
Proprietary Funds
For the fiscal yeat endedJune 30r 2020

Reconcii-iation of operating income to net cash

provided by operaung activities:

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (oss)

to cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Decrease (increase) in assets:

Receivables

Other current assets

Deferred outflows

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:

Accounts payable

Net pension / opeb liability

Utility deposits

Deferred inflows

Compensated absences

Accrued liabilities

$ 813,147 $ (354,826) $ +5g,3Zt

777,345 834,660 946,005

Activities

Gas

Watet &
Sewer Total

(1,517)

26,0t5
(34,430)

(3,492)

95,426

4,300

451

6,870

(77,572)

(11,866)

(111,911)

247,617

317,646

2,150

29,391

(5,167)

Qee)

(13,089)

14,749

(146,341)

244,126

413,072

6,450

29,842

r,703

(7ee)

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 1,018,116 $ 935,323 $ 1,953,439

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CITY OF MORGANFIELD
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30,2020

l. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The City of Motganfield (the "City") is a municipal corporation governed by an elected mayor and six-
member council. It provides the following services as audrorized by its charter: general governmental
service, public safety, public works, and parks and recread.on.

The accounting policies of the City of Motganfield, I(entucky conform to accounting pdnciples
generally accePted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applicable to state and local governments.
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state
and local governments through its pronouncements. The following summary of the more significant
accounting pol,icies is presented to assist the reader in intelpreting the financial statements and other
data in this tepot. These policies should be viewed as an integralpart of the accompanying financial
statements.

a. Financial Reporting Entity

The criteda for includingorgaruzaions as component units within the City's reporting entity include
how the budget is adopted, whether debt is secuted by general obligation of the City, the City's duty
to cover any deficits that may occur and supervision over the accounting functions. Based on the
afore-mentioned criteria, the City of Morganfield, I(entucky has no component units.

Union County Planning Commission

The Union County Planning Commission is a joindy governed orgarizrton with the County of
Union and various cities in the county. The boatd controlling this Commission is appointed by both
the County and these cities. The City is tesponsible for funding a portion of the Commission's
operation. This funding amounted to $56,289 for the yeat ended June 30, 2020 and is reported as

expenditure in the Genetal Fund. The City's ongoing financial intetest and responsibility to the
Commission is not considered to be significant in relation to these financial statements.

Morganfi eld Housing Authority

The Motganfield Housing Authodty was established by the United States Depattment of Housing
and Utban Development (HUD). All members of the Authority's Board are appointed by the
Mayor. The City provides no funding.

b. Basis of Presentation

The government-wide financial statements (the statement of net position and the statement of
acuvities) report information on all the non-fiduciary activities of the pirnary government and its
comPonent units as a whole. Interfund activity, within the governmental and business-type activities
columns, which duplicates revenues or expenses, has been eliminated from these statements.
Exceptions to this genetal rule are lhe transfers between the proprietary and the governmental
funds. Transfers during fi.scal year 2020 include both operating transfers and transfers for capital
expenditures.
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l. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

b. Basis of Presentation, Continued

Governmental acuvities and business-t1pe activities are reported separately to highlight the
differences in funding and opetations. Govetnmental activities are norma\ supported by taxes and
intergovetnmental revenues. Busrness-type activities, on the other hand, rely to a significant extent
on fees and charges that are designed to recover the costs of operations, including the cost of
capital.

The statement of activities outlines the direct expenses of each of the City's major functions and the
program revenues generated by those programs. Direct expenses are those that are cleady
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers
or applicants who putchase, use, ot ditectly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a
given function or segment and 2) opetating and capital grants and contributions that are restricted
to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a paticular function or segment. Taxes and
other items not propedy included among program revenues are reported instead as general
fevenues.

The City segregates transactions related to certain functions or activities in separate funds in order
to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. Separate statements are presented
fot govetnmental and proprietary activities. These statements present each major fund as a separate
column on the fund financial statements; all non-major funds are aggregated and presented rn a
single column. Major funds ate those whose assets, IiabiJities, revenues, or expenses/expenditures

^te 
at least ten percent of the cotresponding totals (assets, liabilities, etc.) for all funds or t,?e

(govetnmental or ptoptietary) and whose total assets, liabiJities, revenues, or expenses/expenditures
are at least five percent of the corresponding total for ail governmental and enterprise funds
combrned. The funds of the financial reporting entity are described below:

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are those funds through which most governmental functions typically are
financed. The measurement focus of governmental funds is on the sources, uses and balance of
current financial resources. The City has presented the following tn^lor govemmental funds.

General Fund-
The Genetal Fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources
of the general government, except where the Department of Local Govemment or
management requires that a separate fund be used for some functions.

Local Government Economic Assistance Fund-
The Local Government Economic Assistance (I-GEA) Fund is a specral revenue fund that
accounts for the state allocation of the gasoline tax and the coal and rnineral severance tax to
local governments for toad improvements. Expenditures for street construction,
teconstruction and maintenance are eligible fot this funding soruce. The Department of
Local Government requires the City to maintain these receipts and expenditures separately
from the General Fund.
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1,. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

b. Basis of Presentation, Continued

Proprietarv Funds

Ptoprietary funds are accounted for using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. The accounting objectives are determinations of net income, f,nancial
position, and cash flow. All assets and liabilities are included on the Statement of Net Assets. The
City has presented the following major proprietary funds:

Gas Fund-
The Gas Fund is used to account for the provision of gas services to the residents of the
City. Activities of the fund include administration, operations and maintenance of the gas
system and billing and collection activities. The fund also accounts for the accumulation of
resoutces for, and the payment of, long-term debt pdncipal and interest for gas debt. All
costs are financed thtough chatges to utility customers with rates reviewed regulady and
adjusted as needed to ensure the integrity of the funds.

Water and Sewer Fund-
The lVatet and Sewer Fund is used to account for the provision of water and sewer services
to the tesidents of the City. Activities of the fund include administration, operations and
maintenance of the water and sewer system and billing and collection activities. The fund
also accounts for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, long-term debt
principal and interest for water and sewer debt. All costs are financed through charges to
utility customers with tates teviewed tegulady and adjusted as needed to ensure the integdty
of the funds.

Propdetary funds distinguish opetating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally tesult from providing services and producing and delivering goods
in connection with a ptoprietary fund's pdncipal ongoing operations. The principal operating
revenues of the City's utiJities are charges to the customers for services. The City's utilities also
recognizes as opetating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting
new customers to the system. Operating expenses for ptoprietary funds and intemal service funds
include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition afe reported as non-operating revenues and
exPenses.

c. Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting

Measutement focus tefers to what is being measured; basis of accounting refers to when revenues
and expenditures are tecognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of
accounting relates to the timing of the measurement made, regardless of the measurement focus
apphed.
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

c. Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting, Continued

The govetnment-wide financial statements and fund financtal statements for proprietary funds are
tepoted using the economic resoufces measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The
economic resources measurement focus means all assets and liabilities (whether current or non-
current) are included on the statement of net assets and the operating statements present increases
(tevenues) and decteases (expenses) in total net assets. Under the accrual basis of accounting
revenues arc recognb,ed when eatned, including unbilled utility services which are accrued.
Expenses are recognized at the time the liabiJity is incurred. Property tax revenues are recognized as

revenue in the year fot which they ate levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as

soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis
of accounting, revenues ate recognized when susceptible to accrua! i.e. when they become both
measurable and available. "Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be determrned
and "avatlable" means collectible within the curent period or soon enough thereafter to be used to
pay liabilities of the current pedod. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if
they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures are recorded
when the telated fund liability is incurred, as undet accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and clarms and judgments,
are tecorded only when payment has matuted and will be payable shortly after year end,

Ptoperty taxes, ftanchise taxes, licenses, charges for services, intergovemmental revenues, and
interest income associated with the cuffent fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to
accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue
items are consideted to be measurable and available only when the City receives cash.

d. Deposits and Investments

The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and
short-tetm investments with original matudties of three months or less from the date of aiquisition.

State statutes (I(RS 66.480) authorize the City to invest in obligations of the U. S. Treasury,
commercial paPer, cofporate bonds that meet the prescribed ratings, repurchase agreemeflts, and
the State Treasurer's Investment Pool.

Investments fot the City are reported at f^k value. Cetificates of deposits are reported at cost since
the tedemption terms do not consider market tates. These investments are required to be fully
collateraTized in accordance with provisions of I{RS 66.480.
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

e. Receivables and Allowance fot Uncollectible Accounts

Major receivable balances fot the governmental activities include propeffy taxes, insurance premium
taxes, ftanchise taxes, and vadous intergovernmental receivables. Business-qpe activities report
utiliues accounts receivable as their majot receivable class. AII teceivables, including those for the
proprietary funds, ate shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts. Trade accounts that arc
classified as inactive have been included in the allowance for uncollectible. Amounts considered to
be uncollectible ate based on histodcal trends and the type and age of the related receivables.

f. Capital Assets

Capttal assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure, are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial
statements.

The City has established a capitalizaion policy to recognize capital assets as assets with an initral,
individual cost of more than $7,500 and an estimated usefi.rl life in excess of one year. Such assets

ate recorded at historical costs ot estimated historical costs if purchased or constructed. Donated
capital assets ate recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The costs of
normal maintenance and repaits that do not add to the value of the asset or matedally extend asset
lives are not capitalized.

Property, plant, and equipment of the City ate depreciated using the suaight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Asset Years

Buildings and improvements

Improvements, other than buildings

Infrastructure
Vehicles

Equrpment and machinery

Computers and related equipment

40

10-35
30-50

50- 7

7 -1,5

5

g. Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The governmental fund balance sheet includes reconciliation between fund balances in the
governmental funds and net assets reported in the government-wide statements. These adiustments
reflect the changes necessary to report the governmental fund balances on the economic resources
measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting. In addition, capital assets, and long-term debt
are added to the governmental funds to compile the long-term view of the governmental activities
column.
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l. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

g. Reconciliation of Govetnment-Wide and Fund Financial Statements, Continued

A similar reconciliation is rncluded on the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances for the governmental funds. These adjustments reflect the uansition from the modifred
accrual accounting for governmental funds to the accttal basis of accounting for the statement of
activities. Capital ouday is teplaced with depreciation expense. The princtpal payments on long-term
debt ate eliminated from the operating costs.

h. CompensatedAbsences

It rs the City's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay
benefits. Vacation pay and sick pay ate acctued when earned in ptoprietary funds and reported as a
fund liability. Employees who retire ftom the City service who have accumulated sick leave receive a
contribudon to their pension account based on the lower of the number of hours accumulate d or a

calculated Lmit of hours based on job status and length of employment, their job classification, and
ther age at retirement.

Accumulated vacation leave must be used within one year, so there is no long-term liabiJity for these
benefits. The liability for these compensated absences is recorded as cuffent liabilities in the
government-wide statements. Liabilities are calculated using the employee's current r^te of pay and
the total hours of accumulated leave.

Compensated absence activity for the year ended June 30, 2020 was as follows:

Balance

7 /01,/2019 Additions Reductions

Governmental Activities:

Compensated absences

Business-Tvoe Activities:

Compensated absences

ff 144,842 $ 60,199 _[_GZj11I $ 11,7,497

fi 132,4+3 ff 66,572 $ (71,154) ff 127,867

Presented on the statement of net assets under the following captions:

Governmental Business-T1pe

Activities Activities

Balance

6/30/2020

Current liabilities: compensated absences

Non-current liabilities: compensated absences

fi 702,263 $

75,234

87,683

40,778
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l, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

i. Long-TermLiabilities

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary funds types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt, and othet long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or propdetary fund type statement of net
assets. Bond ptemiums and discounts ate defered and amortized over the life of the bonds using
the effecuve interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond discount or
gross of bond premium and are reported as deferred charges and amorazed over the life of the
related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund tlpes recognize bond premium and discounts,
as well as debt issuance costs, during the current pedod. The face amount of debt issued is reported
as othet financing sources while premiums teceived and discounts on debt issuances are reported as

other financing sources/uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from actual debt proceeds
received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

i. Fund Balance

In the fund financial statements, the difference between the assets and liabilities of governmental
funds is reported by fund balance. Fund balance is divided into non-spendable and spendable
components, if applicable.

r Non-spendable- consists of amounts that cannot be spent because they are either 1) not
in spendable fotm, or 2) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Spendable include the following:
r Restricted- consist of fund balances that are restricted by external parties (for example,

through debt covenants), by state enabling legislation (through restrictions on shared
revenues), by grantors (both fedetal and state), and by other contributors.

' Committed- consists of amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to
constraints established by fotmal action of the City's highest level of decision making
authority, which would be ordinances ot resolutions passed by the City Council. Those
committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the City Council
modrfies or tescinds the commitment by ordinance or resolution.

' Assigned- consists of amounts that arc consftained by the City's intent to be used for
specific purposes, but ate neither testdcted nor committed. Intent is exptessed by the
City Council, City Administrator, or any other body or official which they have
delegated the authodty to assign amounts to be used for a specific purpose.

r Unassigned- consists of amounts of spendable fund balance that has not been testricted,
committed, or assigned to specific pufposes within a fund.

The City has assigned amounts that represent secruity bonds for various permits the City operates
under.
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

j. Fund Balance, Continued

Street Improvements

Capital outlay and economic

development as amended

per I(RS 42.450

Total

Restrictrons of governmental fund balances as ofJune 30,2020 include the following balances:

$ 150,141

21.8,625

$ 368,766

The City ftst applies testricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both
restricted and untestricted resources are available. Once restricted resources are exhausted, then
committed, assigned and unassigned tesources will be spent in that order on the activiry.

k. Net Position

Net posiuon presents the diffetence between assets and liabiliues in the statement of net position.
Government-wide and ptoprietary fund net position is divided into three comporients:

Net investment in capital assets- consist of the historical cost of capital assets less
accumulated depreciation and less any debt that temains outstanding that was used to
finance those assets.

Restricted- consist of net position that is restricted by the City's creditors (for example,
through debt covenants), by state enabling legislation (through restrictions on shared
revenues), by grantors (both federal and state), and by other conttibutors.
Unrestucted- all other net assets are reported in this categofy.

The City fust applies testdcted resources when an expense is incurred fot purposes for which both
restricted and unrestricted net position is available.

l. Pensions

For purposes of measunng the net pension liabiJity, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of tesoutces related to pensi.ons, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the County Employees Retirement System (CERS) and addiuons to / deductions from
CERS's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by
CERS. For this putpose, benefit payments (includmg refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments ate reported at
fair value.

I

I
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

m. Deferred Outflows / Inflows of Resources

In addtuon to assets, the statement of financial posiuon andf or balance sheet will sometimes report
a separate section for deferred outflows of tesources. This separate financial statement element,
defetred outflows of resoutces, fepresents a consumpuon of net positron that applies to a future
period and so will not be tecognized as an expense or expenditure until then, The City has two
items that quali$, for reporting in this category: the pension-related deferred outflows and OPEB-
related deferred outflows reported in the govemment-wide statement of net position totahng
fi2,356,659 atJune 30,2020, as described in Note 8 & 9 to the financial statements.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financiil, position andf ot balance sheet wili sometimes
fePoft a separate secdon fot defered inflows of resources. This separate financial statement
element, deferred inflows of tesources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a

future period and so will not be recognized as revenue until then. The City has two items that meet
thrs criteria: the pension deferred inflows and OPEB defered inflows reported in the government-
wide statement of net position totaling $873,819 atJune 30,2020, as described in Note 8 & 9 to the
financial statements.

n. Use of Estimates

The preparadon of ftnancial statements, in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles, tequires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of
revenues and expenditutes during the repoming period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

o. Non-exchange Transactions

Non-exchange transactions, in which the City receives value without direcdy giving equal value in
return, include Property taxes, entidements, and donations. Propety taxes levied to finance fiscal
year 201,9 ate tecorded when thete is an enforceable legal claim and when the revenue is measurable
and available. Revenue ftom grants, entitlements and donations are recognized in the fiscal year in
which all eligibrlity requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing
requirements, which specify the year when the resources are required to be used, or the yeat when
use is frst permitted, and matching requirements, in which the City must provide local resources to
be used for a specifred purpose. On the modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange
ttansactions must be available before it can be recognized.

p. COVID-19Disclosures

On March 11,2020, the Wodd Health Organizaton ("!7HO") recognized COVID-79 as a global
pandemic, prompting many national, tegional and local governments to implement preventative or
Protective measures, such as ttavel and business restrictions, temporary store closures, and wide-
sweeping quarantines and stay-at-home ordet. As a result, COVID-19 and the related restrictive
measures have had a significant adverse impact upon many sectors of the economy, including the
rndustry in which the City operates.
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2. Stewatdship, Compliance atrd Accountability

Through the budget, the City Council sets the dirsgtien5 of the City, allocates its resources and
establishes its priorities. The annual budget ensures the efficient and effective use of the City's economic
resources, as well as establishrng that the highest pdority objectives are accomplished.

Budsetarv Information

Annual budgets for the governmental funds ate adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted
accounting pnnciples. Ptopdetary fund budgets are adopted on the modified accrual basis of
accounting. All annual apptopriations lapse at fiscal year-end. The Mayor submits the proposed budget
to the Council no later thanJune 1. Council revises and adopts the budget no later thanJune 30. The
budget ordinance establishes authorized appropriations at the department level of control. Amendments
are adopted during the year as necessary to comply with KRS 91A.030.

Excess Expendrtures and Revenues

For the yeat ended June 30, 2020, General Fund actual revenues did not exceed budgeted revenues by
fi299,374 and actual expenditures exceeded budgeted expenditures by $58,244. For the LGEA Fund
actual revenues did not exceed budgeted revenues by $27,81,3 and actual expenditures drd not exceed
budgeted expenditures by $315,353. These overages were funded by excess revenues in other
funds/departments and available fund balances.

3. Deposits and Investments

Deoosits

-
At June 30, 2020, the City maintained deposits in the amount of $987,248 with two local financial
instituuons. Of these bank balances, $500,000 was insured by federal deposit insurance, and the balance
of fi487,248 was fully colTaterahzed by pledged secruities, as tequired by the I(entucky Revised Statutes.
The carrying amount of these deposits was $859,631.

Investments

The City's investment policies are to invest public funds in a manner which will provide the highest
investment retutn with the maximum security of principal while meeting the daily cash flow demands of
the City and conforming to all state statutes and City tegulations governing the investment of public
funds. The City held no investments atJune 30,2020.

Credrt fusk

The City has no policy tegarding credit dsk. The City is authorized to invest in U.S. Government
backed secutities, any corporation of the U.S. Government, Certificates of Deposit and Bankers
Acceptances issued by highly tated banks, commercial papers in the highest rating category, and
securities issued by a state or local government rated in one of the three highest categories by a

nationally-recognized tating agency, and any other investment permitted by I(entucky Revised Statute
66.480.
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3. Deposits and Investments, Continued

Interest Rate fusk

The City does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment matudties as a means of
managing its exposute to fat value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Custodial Credit Risk

For an investment, the custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of the counterparty,
the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral secutities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The City has no policy on custodial ctedit risk.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The City places no limit on the amount that the City may invest in any one issuer.

4. Ptoperty Tax

Property taxes include amounts levied against all.rcal and public utility property, plus tangible personal
property that is located within the city limits. All property taxes are levied as of October 1st based on
the assessment values as of January 1st. Propety taxes are due by November 30th. After that date, a

10o/o penalty is imposed. If bills are not paid by December 1st, all delinquent accounts bear interest at
78o/o per. annum until paid, Liens ate filed for all delinquent property taxes in May of the followin g yeaL

Assessed values ate established by the County Propety Valuation Administration at 700o/o of appraised
matket value. The city's tax r^te applicable to the 2020 ftscal year was $.572 per $100 of assessed
valuation for real estate and $.6109 personal property and $.602 for motor vehicles and watercraft.

5. Receivables

Receivables as of June 30, 2020 for the City's major funds, including the applicable allowances for
uncollectible accounts are as follows:

Geneml LGEA Gas Water & Sewer Total
Receivables:

Utilitres

Intergovemmental

Taxes

Franchise Fees

Other
Gross Receivables

Less: Allowance for
uncollectibles

Net Receivables

$

2,016

(J ,51 8)

$ 7,284
3,877

77 6,299

20,550

196,365

$ 9 74s $ 46,277

205,956
$ 63,306

209,933

1,7 6,289

20,550

194,2215 840
394,365 1.1,7 67 258,073 664,799

(171,066) (7 ,239) (181,823)

$ 223,299 $

3t

$ 8,243 $ 250,834 $ 482,376
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6. Capital Assets

Capital asset acuvity fot the fiscal year ended June 30,2020, was as follows:

Balance

7 / 1/2019 Additions Disposals

G overnmental Activities:

N on- d epreciable capital

Land

C onstruction in p rogress

Total non-deprecrable capital assets

D epreciable capital assets:

Buildngs and improvements

Improvements, othet than buildings

Infrastructure

Vehicles

Equipment

Total depreciable capital assets

Less accumulated depreciation on:

Buildings and improvements

Improvements, other than buildings

Infrastructure

Vehicles

Equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Governmental activities capital assets, net

$ 503,085 $ $

(120,563)

5,245,807 290,081 (120,563) 5,41. 5,325

Q,877,846) (185,216) 15,950

Q52,043)
(590,983)

(106,311)

Q 65,1.61)

(826,614\

(3,041.,172)

$ 2,877,046 $ 104,865 $ (104,613) _v,87J 2e8_

Balance

6/ 30 /2020

$ 503,085

503,085 503,095

1,492,140

997,390

7t7,755

806,358

1,232,164

1.8,629

1.51,,1,67

1.20,285

1.,51.0,7 69

997,390

71.7,755

957,525

1,23I,886

(723,880)

(559,582)

(89,894)

(725,206)

u73,284)

Q8,'.|63)
(31,401)

(16,417)

(39,955)

(69,280) 15,950

Business-Tvo e Activities:

N on-deprecrable capital assets:

Land

Construction in progress

Total non-depreciable capital assets

D epreciable capital assets:

Plant faciliues and improvements

Equrpment and vehicles

Total depreciable capital assets

Less accumulated depreciadon on:
Plant facilities and improvements

Equipment and vehicles

Total accumulated depreciation

Business-type activities capital assets, net

590,937 Q59,01.3)

296,892 590,937 Q59,013) 628,816

30,81.1,407

fi 42,t49

254,743

$ $ $ 42,t49

586,667

3

387,272

394,328 (618,490)

31,1.98,679

3,204,1.79

34,239,747 791,600 (618,490)

(1,1,,950,71,2) Q 61,138)

(184,870)

(1,2,711,,850)

Q,1.60,907)7) 572,410

(1,4,499,059) (946,008) 572,410 (1.4,872,657)

$ 20,037

38

,580 $426,529 $(305,093) $ 20,159,016
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6. Capital Assets, Continued

Depreciation expese was charged as a direct expeflse to the program of the primary government as follows:

G overnm ental Activities :

G eneral governrnent and administration

Public safety:

Police

Fire

Highway and streets

Parks and recreadon

Total

Business-Tr,r: e Activities:

Gas
rJTater and sewer

Total

$ 16,104

45,866

33,561

52,372

37,31.3

$ 185,216

$ 111,348

834,660

$ 946,008

Interest incurred and charged to expense dudng the year on capital projects equaled $i 16,359.

7. Long-term Liabilities and Short-term Debt

Long-term liability activity for the fiscal year ended June 30,2020, was as foliows:

Balance Balance

7 /1,/2019 Additions Reductions 06/30/2020
Due within
One Year

Governmental Activities :

Equipment note

Net pension liability
Net OPEB iiability

Totals

$ 17,100

3,568,548

1,042,637

$ $ (7,328) $ 9,772

- 4,323,61.4

$ 7,329
755,066

1.4,290 1,056 ,927

$ 4,628,285 $ 7 69,356 $ (7,328) $ 5,390,313 fi 7,329

Business-tvoe Activities:

I(IA loan fundA
I(IA loan fund B

USDA RD loan

Net pension liability - Gas

Net OPEB liability - Gas

Net pension liabiiity - W&S
Net OPEB liability - W&S

Totais

$ 2,973,109

213,287

2,5gg,5oo

397,71.7

114,191

1,g2g,2lg
533,1,93

93,584

1.,842

291,510

26,1.36

$ 2,739,649

172,929

2,544,000

495,301
'1,16,033

2,120,729

559,329

$ $ (133,460)

(40,359)

(45,500)

$ 135,068

4r,477

46,500

$ 8,544,216 $ 41,1,072 $ (219,319) $ 8,737 ,969 fi 223,045

The City has a fxed rate line of credit (not to exceed $1,300,000) with a local financial institution which
is utilized for capital expenditures and cash flow pulposes. The iine of credit is unsecured and bears
interest at3.500/0, The short-tetm debt activity fot the year endedJune 30, 2020,was as follows:
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7. Long-term Liabilities and Shoft-term Debt, Continued

Balance

7 /1/201,9 Additions

G overnm ental Activities
Notes from Direct

Borrowings

Reductions

Business- tlr: e Activities
Notes from Direct

Borrowings Bonds

Balance

6/30/2020

Business-fvoe Acuviues:

Line of credit $ $ 205,956 $ $ 205,956

Debt serwice requirements atJune 30,2020 to retire the City's long-term obligations were as follows:

Year ended June 30,

2027

2022

2023

2024

2025

Thereafter

Total

$ 7,328 $

2,444
$ 176,545

180,068

1,83,664

1,87,335

144,817

2,042,149

$ 51,828

48,305

44,709

41,038

41,038

236,71.6

$ 463,635

$ 46,500 $

47,500

49,500

50,000

51,000

2,300,500

Bry.fpa] Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

57,236

56,187

55,115

54,018

52,997

914,035

$ 2,544,000 $ 1,1 gg,57g

Other information on the City's long-term indebtedness is summarized below:

Final Prinopal
Oblisation Interest Rate Maturity Balance Securitv

G overnmental Activities:

Notes payable

Due anrrually in the amounts rangin 0.00oh 11/30/21 g 24,428 Equipment
from $7,328 to $2,444

Business- wo e A ctivities:

Notes payable

((IA Loan Fund - A) Direct borrowings from I{entucky Infrastructure Authority (KIA), dated 9 / 1. / 1,6,

principal and interest at 1,.7 5o/o per arulrun to be repaid over a period of 20 years.

$870 monttrly reserve required until reserve equals $104,400.

(I(IA Loan Fund - B) Direct Borowilgs from I(entucky Infrastructure Authorlty (KIA), dated 5 / 1 / 16,
princrpal and intetest at2.75o/o per affrurn to be repaid over a period of 5 years.

(JSDA RD Loan) Water Revenue Bond with US Departrnent of Agriculture (JSDA), dated 1, /29 / 1,8,

princrpal and interest at 2.25o/o per anm.xrl to be repaid over a period of 38 years. Secured by and payable
frorn a pledge of a Exed portion of the gross reveflues of the system.

ff 9,772 $ ff2,91 4,578
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8. Pension Plan

PIan Descriouon

The City participates in the County Employees Retirement System (CERS), which is a cost-sharing
multiple-employet defined benefit pension plan administered by I(entuclry Rerirement Systems (I(RS),
Mr 

^geflcy 
of the Commonwealth of I(entucky. CERS covers all fi;ll-time employed in nonhazardous

and hazardous positions of each participating county, city, and school board, and any additional eligible
local agencies electing to paticipate in CERS. Kentucky Revised Statute Section 61.645 assigns the
authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the Board of Trustees of I(entucky Retirement
Systems (Board). I(RS issues a publicly available financial report that includes audited financial
statements and audited requited supplementary information for CERS. The report may be obtained by
writing to i(enrucky Retirement System, Perimeter Park West, 7260 Louisville Road, Frankfort,
I(entucky 40601', or it may be found at the I(RS website at www.kvret.kv,pov.

Benefits Provided

CERS provides fot rettrement, disabiliry, and death benefits to system members. Retirement benefits
may be extended to beneficiaries of members under certain circumstances. Retirement benefits are
determined using a formula which considers the member's final compensation; benefit factors set by
statute which vary depending upon the type/amount of service, paticipation date, and retirement date;
and years of service. The information below summarizes the major retirement benefit provisions of
CERS. For retirement and benefit purposes, non-hazardous and hazardous employees are grouped into
three tiers. The following summaries are not intended to be, nor should it be interpreted aq a complete
statement of all benefit provisions:

Non-hazardous members :

Tiet 1:

Fot members whose participation began befote September 7,2008, the following provisions
are in force:

Age and service requirement:
Unreduced Benefit: Age 65, with at least 48 months of service credit.

Age 65, with at least one month of non-hazardous duty service credit.
Any age with 27 or more yeats of service credit

Reduced Benefit: Age 55, with at least five (5) years of service credit
Any age with at least 25 and up to 27 years of service credrt

Benefit Amount:
For membets whose paticipation began befote August 1,,2004, if a member has at least 48
months of service, the monthly benefit ts 2.2o/o times final aver^ge compensation times years
of service. Fot membets whose participation began on or after Augusi 1,,2004, the benefit
factor is 2.0o/o. Benefits are teduced by varying percentage based on years of age or service
from full retirement cri.teria.

If a member has at least one month but less than 48 months of service, the monthly benefit is
the actuarial equivalent of two times the member's contributions with interest.

4T



CITY OF MORGANFIELD
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30,2020

8. Pension Plan, Continued

Non-hazardous members. Continued:

Compensation:
Frnal compensation is calculated by taking the average of the highest five (5) fiscal years of
salary. If the numbet of months of serwice credit during the five (5) year pedod is less than
forty-eight (48), one (1) or more addrtional fiscal yeats shall be used.

Trer 2:

For membets whose participation began on or aftet September 1, 2008, but before January 1,

2014, the following provisions are in force:

Age and service requirement:
Unteduced Benefit: Age 65, with at least 60 months of service credit.

Age 57, if members age and years of service equal 87 (R.ule of 87)

Reduced Benefit: Age 60, with at least 120 months of servi.ce credit

Benefit Amount:
The monthly benefit is the following benefit fzctor based on sewice credit at retirement
multiplied by final average compensadon, multiplied by years of service.

Service Crcdit
120 months or less

L21, - 240 months
241. - 312 months
31,3 - 360 months
Over 360 months

Benefit Factor
1,.100

7.3oo/o

1..500h

1..7 5010

2.OOo

Benefits are reduced by varying percentage based on years of age or sewice from full
tetirement criteria.

Compensation:
Final compensation is calculated by taking the 

^yer.^ge 
of the last (not highest) frve (5)

complete fiscai years of salary. Each fiscal year used to determine final compensation must
contain twelve (12) months of serwice credit.

Tier 3:

For membets whose paticipation began on or after January 1, 2014, the following provisions
are in force:

Age and service tequirement:
Unteduced Benefit: Age 65, with at least 60 months of service credit.

Age 57, if members age and years of seryice equal 87 (R.ule of 87)

Reduced Benefit: Not available
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Non-hazardous members. Continued:

Benefit Amount:
Plan members in Tier 3 paricipate in and contribute to the Cash Balance PIan. The Cash
Balance Plan is known as a hybrid plan because it has chatactedstics of both a Defined Benefit
Plan and a Defined Conuibution PIan. Each year that a member is an active contributing
membet to the System, the member and the member's employer will contribute 5.0070 and
4.00oh, respectively, of creditable compensation into a hypothetical account.

The employer p^y ctedit represents a portion of the employer contribution. The hypotheucal
account will earn interest annually on both the membet's and employer's contributiofl 

^t 
a

minimum rate of 4Yo.If the System's geomeftic average net investment return for the previous
five years exceeds 4o/o, rhen the hypothetical account will be credited with an additional
amount of interest equal to 75o/o of the amount of the return which exceeds 4oh. All, interest
ctedits will be applied to the hypothetical account balance on June 30 based on the account
balance as of June 30 of the previous year. Upon redrement the hypothetical account which
includes membet contributions, employer contributions and interest credits can be withdrawn
ftom the System as a lump sum or annuitized into a single life annuity option.

Hazardous members:

Tier 1:

For members whose participation began before Septembet 1, 2008, the following provisions
are in force:

Age and service requirement:
Unreduced Benefit Age 55, with at ieast 60 months of service ctedit.

Age 55, with at least one month of hazardous duty service credit.
Any age with 20 or more years of service credit

Reduced Benefit: Age 50, with at least 15 years of sewice credit

Benefit Amount:
Fot membets who have at least 60 months of service, the monthly benefit is 2.5o/o times final

^yerage 
compensation times yeats of service. Benefits are reduced by varying percentage based

on years of age or service from full retirement cdteria.

If a membet has at least one month but less than 60 months of service, the monthly benefit is
the actuadal equivalent of two times the member's contributions with interest.

Cornpensation:
Final compensation is calculated by taking the average of the highest three (3) fiscal years of
salary. If the numbet of months of service credit during the three (3) year period is less than
twenty-four Q.4), one (1) ot more additional fi.scal years shall be used.
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Hazardous members. Continued:

Trer 2:

For members whose participation began on or after September 1, 2008, but before Jari,;riry 1.,

201,4, the following provisions are in force:

Age and service requirement:
Unreduced Benefit Any age with at least 25 years of service credit.

Age 60, with at least 60 months of service credit.

Reduced Benefit: Age 50, with at least 180 months of service credit

Benefit Amount:
The monthly benefit is the following benefit factor based on service credit at retirement
multiplied by final average compensation, multiplied by years of service.

Service Credit Benefit Factor
120 months orless 1.30%

l2'1. - 240 months 7.50%

247 to 299 months 2.250/o

Over 300 months 2.50Vo

Benefits ate reduced by varying petcentage based on years of age or service from full
feflfement cfltefla.

Compensation:
Final compensation is calculated by taking th. 

^verage 
of the last (not highest) three (3)

complete fiscal years of salary. Each fiscal year used to determine final compensation must
contain twelve (12) months of service credrt.

Tier 3:

For membets whose participation began on or after January 7, 2074, the following provisions
are in force:

Age and service requirement:
Unreduced Benefit: Any ag6 with at least 25 years of sewice credit.

Age 60, with at least 60 months of service credit.

Reduced Benefit: Not available

Benefit Amount:
Plan members in Tier 3 participate in and contribute to the Cash Balance P1an. The Cash
Balance Plan is known as a hybrid plan because it has charactedstics of both a Defined Benefit
PIan and a Defined Contribution Plan. Each year that a member is an acdve contributing
membet to the System, the member and tlle member's employer will contribute 8.0070 and
7.500/0, tespectively, of cteditable compensation into a hlpothetical account. The employet p^y
ctedit rePtesents a potion of the employer contribution. The hlpothetical account will earn
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Hazardous members. Continued:

interest annually on both the member's and employer's contribution at 
^ 

minimum rate of 40/0.

If the System's geomeftic average net investment return for the previous five years exceeds
4o/0, then the hypothetical account will be credited with an additional amount of interest equal
to75o/o of the amount of the return which exceeds 4Yo. i\1. interest credits wrll be applied to
the hypothetical account balance onJune 30 based on the account balance as of June 30 of the
ptevious ye t. Upon retitement the hlpothetical account which includes member
conttibuttons, employer contributions and interest credits can be withdrawn from the System
as a lump sum or annuitized into a single life annuity option.

Fot all tiers, cost of livrng adjustments (COI-A) are provided only tf authoized by the Legislature and

^te ^t 
the discretion of the General Assembly. Death and disability benefits arc avatlable to members

based on years of service, compensation, tetitement date and other factors. Please refer to the Summary
Plan Description, available fiom I(RS, fot a complete description of all Plan benefits and provisions.

Contributions

Per l(entucky Revised Statues Sections 78.545 (33), contribution requirements of the active employees
and the paticipating employets are established and may be amended by the I(RS Board. Plan members,
ate requted to contribute a percentage of their annual creditable compensation based on thet benefit
tier as follows:

Non-hazatdous
Required contribution

F{azardous

Requited contribution
Tier 1

Tier 2
Tiet 3

5o/o

5o/o * 1,o/o fot health insurance fund
5o/o * 1,o/o for health insutance fund

8o/o

Boh + 1,oh for health insurance fund
8oh + 1,oh for health insurance fund

The City contributes 
^t ^L ^ctw^tially 

determined contribution rate determined by I(RS Board. The
City's required contribution tates for the year ended June 30, 2020, was 24.06%o (of which 19.30o/o was
credited to pension liability and4.760/o was credited to i.nsurance liability) fornon-hazardous employees
and 39.58o/o (of which 30.060/o was credited to pension liability and9.52o/o was credited to insurance
liabiltty) forhazardous employees. Contributions to CERS by the City were $496,236 for the year ended

June 30,2020, which consisted of $445,115 and $51,120 for non-hazatdous andhazar.dous employees,
respectively.

Pension Liabiliues, Pension Expense. Deferred Outflows of Resources. and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2020, the City reported a liability of $6,929,644 for its proportionate share of rhe net
pension liability OJPL). The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2079, and the total
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an acttatialvaluation as of
that date. The City's propottion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the City's long
term share contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contibutrons of all paticipating

45



CITY OF MORGANFIELD
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020
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Pension Liabilities. Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resouces. and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions. Continued

entities, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2079, the City's proportion was 0.0870510/o for non-
hazardous and 0.0292260/o f.ov. hazardous, an inctease of 0.0036430/o from its proportion measured as of
June 30, 2018 of 0.083408% for non-hazatdous and a decrease of 0.000111o/o for hazardous from its
propottion measuted as of June 30, 2078 of 0.0293370/o. The amount recognized by the City as its
proportionate share of the net pension liability was as follows:

Citv Proportionate Share of NPL
Non-hazardous
Hazardous

fi 6,722,336
807 308

Total $ 6,929,644

The City recognized pension expenses of $1.,230,7 41 for the year ended June 30, 2020, which consisted
of $1,067,389 and fi163,352 for non-hazardous znd hazardous employees, respectrvely. At June 30,
2020, the City reported defered outflows of resoutces and defered inflows of resources related to
pensions from the followrng sources:

Non-hazardous Hazardous

Deferred

Outflows of
Resources

Deferred

lnflows of
Resources

Defened

Outflows of
Resources

Deferred

lnflows of
Resources

Net difference between projected and

actual eamings on plan investments

Difference between expected and actual

experience

Change of assumptions

Changes in proportron and differences

between employer contributions and

proportionate share of contributions

fi 117,525 $ 276,279 fi 72,479 $ 23,845

756,322

679,650

757 ,87 6

25,868 34,301,

78,365

32,51.4

City contnbutions subsequent to the

measurement date

Total

445,715 51,120

$ 1,496,488 $ 242,097 fi 1,7 6,205 $ 56,359

The $496,236 of. deferred outflows of resources resulting from the City's contdbutions subsequent to
the measutement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liabiJity in the year ending
June 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as defered outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources will be tecognized in pension expense as follows:
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Pension Liabilrties. Pension Expense. Defered Outflows of Resources. and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions, Continued

Non-hazardous Hazardous
Yeat endingJune 30,

2020
2027
2022
2023
2024

Thereafter

$ 809,286 $ 68,727

Acruarial Assumotions

The total pension liability rn the June 30, 2020, actuarial valuation for both non-hazardous and
hazardous liabilities were determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods
included in the measurement:

$ 497,076
21.8,280

86,987
7,003

39,990
79,934

8,075
728

$

Inflation
Salary increases
Investment rate of return

2.30o/o

3.30% to 77.5o/o, varies by service
6.25% net of PIan investrnent expense, including inflation

The mortality table used fot acdve members is RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table projected with Scaie
BB to 2013 (multiplied by 50o/o f.or the males and30o/o for females). For healthy retired members and
beneficiaries, the mortality table used is the RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table projected with Scale BB
to 201,3 (set back 7 yeat for females). For disabled members, the RP-2000 Combined Disabled Mortality
Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 (set back 4 years for males) is used for the pedod after disability
tetirement. There is some margin in the current mortality tables for possible future improvement in
motality rates and that matgin will be reviewed again when the next expedence investigauon is
conducted.

The actuarial assumptions usedin theJune 30, 20T9,valuationwere based on the results of anactwaial
experience study for the periodJuly 1, 2008 - June 30,2073.

Discount rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.25oh

Projected cash flows: The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed the
local employers would contribute the actuarially determined contribution rate of projected
compensation over the remaining26 year amorazadon pedod of the unfunded acttarial accrued liability.
The actuarial detetmined contribution rate is adjusted to reflect the phase in of anticipated gains on
actuarial value of assets over the frst four years of the projection period.
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Acruariai A ssumotions. Continued

-

Long tetm rate of return: The long term rate of return assumption on plan assets is reviewed as part of
the regular experience studies prepared every five years for the System. The most recent analysis,
performed fot the period covering fiscal years 2008 through2013, is outlined in a report dated April 30,
2014. Several factors are considered in determining the long-term rate of return assumption rncluding
long tetm historical data, estimates inhetent in cuuent market data, and a log-notmal distributron
analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected return, net of
investment expense and rnflation) were developed by the investment consultant for each major asset
class. These ranges were combined to produce long-term expected rate of ieturn by weighting the
expected futute teal rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and then adding expected
rnflation. The capital market assumptions developed by the investment consultant are intended for use
over a 10 year hoizon and may not be useful in setting the long-term rate of return for funding pension
plans which covers a longet timeframe. The assumption is intended to be a long term assumption and is
not expected to change absent a significant change in the asset allocation, a change in the inflation
assumption, or a fundamental change in the market that alters expected feturns in futute years.

Municipal bond rate: The discount rate determination does not use a municipal bond rate.

Pedods of projected benefit payments: Projected future benefit payments for all cuffent plan membets
wete projected through 2117.

Assumed Asset Allocation: The target asset allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of
return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class

Target
Allocation

Long-Term Expected
Real Rate of Return

US Equity

Non-US Eq"ity
Private Eq"ity
Specialty Credit/High Yield
Core Bonds

Cash

Real Estate

Opportunistic

Real Reflrn
Total

1,8.75%o

1.8.7SYo

1,0.00%

1.5.000/o

1,3.50o/o

1.000h

5.00Yo

3.00Y0

15.00Yo

4.30Y0

4.80%

6.65%

2.60%

1..350/o

0,200/o

4.85Yo

2.97%o

4.100h

100.00%
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Sensitivity of the City's Proporuonate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount

The followrng presents the City's propottionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 6.250/o, as well as what the City's proportionate share of the net pension liabiJity would
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (5.25o/o) or 1-percentage-
point higher (7.25oh) than the current rate:

Rate

Discount Rate

City's Proportionate
Share of Net

Pension Liability
Non-hazardhous

City's Proportionate
Share of Net

Pension Liability
Hazardhous

1%o decrease

Current discount rate

1%o inctease

Actuarial cost method
Amotization method
Remaining amorizatton period
Payroll Growth Rate
Asset valuation method

Inflation
Salary inctease
Investment fate of retufn

Errtry age normal
Level percentage of payroll, closed
26 yearc, closed
2.00 percent
20oh of the difference between the market value of
assets and the expected aca:r;ial value of assets

is recognized
2.30 petcent
3.30 petcent to 11.55 percent, varies by service
6.25 percent

5.25o/o

6.250h

7.250

$7,657,305

ff6,L22,336

$4,842,953

$1,009,317

$807,308

$641,,691

Method and Assumotions Used in Calculations of AcutarialTv Determined Contributions

The actuarially determined contribution tates ate determined by and actuarial valuation as of June 30,
2079. The following actuadal methods and assumptions were used to determine contribuuon rates
teported in that schedule:

Chanses in Assumptions and Benefit Terms

There were no changes in assumptions ot benefit terms since the prior measurement date.
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Chanqes since Measurement Date

There were no changes between the measutement date of the collective net pension liability and the
employer's teporting date.

Plan Fiduciarv Net Position

Detailed information about the CERS fiduciary net position is availabte in the separately issued
I(entucky Retirement Systems Comprehensive Annual Financial Repot.

Pavables to the Pension Plan

At June 30, 2020, the City reported a payable of $41,933 and $4,750 for non-hazardous and hazardous
employees, respectively,

9. Other Post-Employment Benefits

In addition to the pension benefits described above, the I(entucky Retirement Systems (KRS) provides
post-reti-rement healthcare benefits, in accordance with Kentucky Revised Statutes. The I(entucky
Retirement Systems Insutance Fund (Fund) was established to ptovide hospital and medical insurance
for members receiving benefits ftom I(RS, including those in the County Employees Retirement System
(CERS), which is a cost-sharing multiple-employer Defined Benefit OPEB Plan, which the City
participates. The Plan's financials are included in the I(entuclry Retirement Systems audited financial
statements, which may be found at the I(RS website at www.kyret.ky.gov. The fund and members
receiving benefits pay ptescdbed portions of the aggregate premiums paid by the Fund. The allocation
of insurance ptemiums paid by the Fund and amounts withheld from member benefits is based on years
of service with the Systems. For member participating pdor to July 7,2003, years of service and
respective percentage of the maximum contribution are as follows:

Service ohPaidby

Period Insurance Fund
20 or more years 70Oo/o

15-19 years 75o/o

10-14 years sooh
4-9 years 25o/o

Less than 4 years \oh

As a result of House Bill 290 (2004 I(entuclry General Assembly), medical insurance benefits are
calculated differently for members who began participating on, or after, July 7,2003, Once members
reach a mitumum vesting period of ten years, nonhazardous employees whose paticipation began on, or
after, July 1,2003 earn ten dollars ($10) pet month for insurance benefi.ts at retirement for every year of
earned service without regard to a maximum dollat amount. This dollar amount is subject to adjustment
annually based on the retiree cost of livrng adjustment (COLA), which is at the discretion of the
I(entucky General Assembly who teserves the right to suspend ot reduce this benefit if, in its judgment,
the welfare of the Commonwealth so demands.
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In prior years, the employets' tequired medical insurance contribution rate was being increased annually
by a petcentage that would result in advance-funding the medical liability on an actuarially determined
basis using the enty age notmal cost method within a 20 year period measured from 1987. In
Novembet 1992, the Boatd of Trustees adopted a fxed percentage contribution rate and suspended
future incteases under the curent medical premium funding policy until the next expedence study could
be performed. In May 7996, the Boatd of Trustees adopted a policy to increase the insurance
contributiofl rate by the amount needed to achieve the target rate fot full entry age normal funding
within twenty years.

On August 6,2072, the Retirement System Boatd voted to cease self-funding of healthcare benefits for
most KRS Medicare eligible retirees. The Board elected to contract with Humana Insurance Company
to provide healthcare benefits to KRS' retirees through a fully-insured Medicare Advantage Plan. The
Humana Medicare Advantage Plan became effective January 1,2013.

Histodcal tend infotmation showing the CERS' progress in accumulating sufficient assets to pay
benefits when due is ptesented in the I(entucky Retirement Systems' annual financial report. This
report may be obtained by wdting the I(entucky Retirement Systems, 7260 Louisville Road, Frankfort,
KY 40601-61,24, or by telephone 

^t 
(502-564-4646).

Contribution Policv

The City's aconialTy detetmined contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2020, was 24.060/o of
annual creditable compensation, of which 19.300 ar.d 4.760/o was contributed to the Pension and
OPEB funds within CERS for non-hazardous employees and 39.58o/o of annual creditable
compensation, of which 30.060/0 and 9.52o/o was contributed to the Pension and OPEB funds withrn
CERS forhazardous employees. Contributions to CERS by the City were $725,970 for the year ended

June 30,2020, which consisted of $109,780 and $16,190 fornon-hazardous andhazardous employees,
respectively.

OPEB Liabilities. OPEB Expense. Defered Outflows of Resoutces. and Defered Inflows of
Resources Related to OPEB

AtJune 30,2020, the City teported a liabiJity of $1,680,077 for its proportionate share of the net OPEB
liabiJity, The net OPEB liabiJity was measuted as of June 30,2019, and the total OPEB liability used to
calculate the net OPEB liabihty was determined by an acttarial valuation as of that date. The City's
proportion of the net OPEB liability was based on a projection of the City's long term share
contributtons to the OPEB plan relative to the projected contibutions of all paticipating entities,
actuarially determined. At June 30, 2079, the City's proportion was 0.087037oh for not-hazardous and
0.0292270/o f.othazardous, an inctease of 0.003626oh from its ptoportion measured as of June 30, 2018
of 0,0834050/o for non-hazardous and a dectease of 0.000179o/o for hazardous from its proportion
measured as of June 30,2078 of 0.0293400/o.The amount tecognized by the City as its proportionate
shate of the net OPEB liabrlity was as follows:

Citv Ptoportionate Share of Net OPEB Liabilitv
Non-hazardous
Hazardous

Total

$ 1,463,822
2'.16 1,94
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9, Other Post-Employmeflt Benefits, Continued

Resources Related to OPEB. Continued

The City recognized OPEB expenses of $190,784 for the year endedJune 30,2020, which consisted of
$157,696 and $33,088 fornon-hazardous andhazardous employees, respectively. AtJune 30, 2O2O,the
City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from
the following sources:

Non-hazardous Hazardous

Net difference between projected and

actual eamings on plan investments $ 9,642 fi 74,659 $ 1,477 $ 13,907

433,759 65,333

40,21,9

409

Changes in proportion and differences

between employer contributions and

proportionate share of contributions 48,384 4,180 7,167

109 780 16,190

$ 600,965 _$_s23l0s_ $ 83,000 $ 61,702

The $125,970 of deferred outflows of resources resulting from the City's contdbutions subsequent to
the measutement date will be recognized as a reducdon of the net OPEB liability in the year endingJune
30,2020. Other amounts teported as defered outflows of resources and defered inflows of resources
will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Non-hazardous Hazardous
Year endingJune 30,

2020
2021.

2022
2023
2024

Thereaftet

$

Deferred

Outflows of
Resources

Deferred

Inflows of
Resources

447,669

2,897

Deferred

Outflows of
Resources

Deferred

lnflows of
Resources

Difference between expected and actual

erperience

Change of assumptions

City contributions subsequent to the

measurement date

Total

$$ (2,857)
(2,857)
17,81.4

(21,803)
(19,91 6)

(2,598)

1 1,049

(4s0)
(6,13 8)

649
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9. Other Post-Employment Benefits, Continued

Acruarial Assumotions

The total OPEB liabiJity in the June 30, 2019, actuarial valuation was determined using the following
actuarial assumptions, applied to all pedods included in the measurement:

Inflation 2.30o/o

Salary incteases 3.05o/o to 18.5570, varies by service
Investment rate of return 6.250/o net of Plan investrnent expense, including inflation

The motality table used for active members is RP-2000 Combined Motality Table projected with Scale
BB to 2013 (muluplied by 50o/o for the males and30o/o for females). For healthy retted members and
beneficiaties, the mortality table used is the RP-2000 Combined Motality Table projected with Scale BB
to 2013 (set back 1 year for females). Fot disabled members, the RP-2000 Combined Disabled Mortaliry
Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 (set back 4 yeats for males) is used for the pedod after disability
retirement. There is some margrn in the current motality tables fot possible future improvement in
mortality rates and that margin will be reviewed again when the next experience investigation is
conducted.

The actuarial assumptions used in theJune 30, 201,9,valaation were based on the results of an actuarial
expedence study for the periodJuly l, 2008 -June 30,201,3.

Discount rate: The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 5.6870.

Projected cash flows: The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed the
local employers would contribute the actuarially determined contribution t?te of projected
compensation over the remaining25 year amorizaaon period of the unfunded actta:.ral accrued liabrlity.
The actuarial detetmined contribution tate is adjusted to reflect the phase in of anticipated gains on
actuadal value of assets over the first four years of the projection period.

Long tetm rate of return: The long teffi rate of return assumption on plan assets is reviewed as part of
the tegular experience studies ptepated every five years for the System. The most recent analysis,
petfotmed for the pedod covering fi.scal years 2008 through 2073, is outlined in a report dated April 30,
2014. Several factors are considered in determimng the long-term rate of retum assumption including
long term historical data, estimates inherent in curent market data, and a log-normal distdbution
analysis in whrch best-estimate ranges of expected future teal rates of retutn (expected return, net of
investment expense and inflation) were developed by the investment consultant for each major asset
class. These ranges were combined to produce long-term expected rate of return by weighting the
expected future teal rates of retutn by the target asset allocation percentage and then adding expected
inflation. The capital market assumptions developed by the investment consultant are intended for use
over a 70 year horizon and may not be usefirl in setting the long-term rate of return for funding pension
plans which covers a longet timeftame. The assumption is intended to be a long term assumption and is
not expected to change absent a significant change in the asset allocation, a change in the inflation
assumption, ot a fundamental change in the market that alters expected returns in future years.

Municipal bond rate: The discouflttate determination was 3.73o/o.
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9, Other Post-Employment Benefits, Continued

Actuarial Assumptrons. Continued

Pedods of projected benefit payments: Ptojected future benefit payments for all current plan members
were projected through 2117.

Assumed Asset Allocation: The target asset allocation and best estimates of adthmetic real rates of
return for each major asset class are summarized rn the following table:

Asset Class

Tatget
Allocation

Long-Term Expected
Real Rate of Retum

US Equity

Non-US Eq"ity
Private Eq*ty
Sp ecialty Credit/ High Yield

Core Bonds

Cash

Real Estate

Opportunistic

Real Retutn

Total

Discount Rate

Non-
hazardous

1,8.7SYo

18,750/o

10.00%

15.00%o

13,500/o

7.00Yo

5.00%

3.000/o

15.00Yo

100.00%

City's Proportionate
Share of Net OPEB

Liability Non-
hazardous

City's Propordonate
Share of Net OPEB
Liabfity Hazardous

4.300/o

4.80o/o

6.650/o

2.600h

1..35o/o

0.20Yo

4.85Y0

2.970/o

4.1.00/o

Sensiuvitv of the Ciw's Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the City's proportionate share of the net OPEB liabrhty calculated usrng the
discount rate of 4.680/o, as well as what the City's proportionate share of the net OPEB liabiJity would be
if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-petcentage-point lower (5.680/0) or 1-percentage-point
lrrgher (6.680/0) than the current rate for hazatdous and using the discount rate of 5.690/o, as well as what
the City's ptopottionate shate of the net OPEB liabiJity would be if it were calculated using a discount
rate that is 1-percentage-point lower $.69%o) or 1-percentage-point higher (6.690/0) than the current rate
f.or non-hazardous:

Discount
Rate

Hazardous
1%o dectease

Current discount rate

1o/o inctease

4.680/o

5.680/o

6.680/0

1,,960,920

1,,463,922

7,O54,247

4.690h

5.690h
6.690 0

301,635
276,794
746,942

$

$

$

$

$

$
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9. Other Post-Employment Benefits, Continued

Cost Trend Rate

The following presents the City's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability calculated using the
current healthcare cost trend rate selected by each OPEB system, as well as what the City's net OPEB
liability would be if it were calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate that is l-percentage-point lower
or 1-percentage-point lugher than the current rate:

City's Proportionate
Shate of Net OPEB

Liability
Non-hazardous

City's Proportionate
Share of Net OPEB

Liability
Hazardous

1%o dectease

Curtent healthcare cost trend rate

1.7o increase

$1,099,652
fi7,463,922

$1,91 9,7 67

$150,431

$21.6,1,94

fi296,422

Nlethod and Assumotions Used rn Calculations of Actuariallv Determrned Contributions

The actuarially determined contribution rates are determined by and actuarial valuation as of June 30,
2019. The following actwaial methods and assumptions were used to determine contribution rates
reported in that schedule:

Actuanal cost method
Amotization method
Remaining amorttzatton pedod
Paytoll growth rate
Asset valuation method

Inflauon
Salary increase
Investment rate of return
Mortality

Et tty age notmal
Level percentage of payroll, closed
26 years, Closed
2.00 percent
20o/o of. the difference between the market value of
assets and the expected actwaial value of assets is
recognized
2.30 percent
3.05 percent to 11.55 percent, varies by service
6.25 percent
RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table, projected to
2013 with Scale BB (set back 7 yeat for females)
Initial trend startin g at 7 .25o/o and gradually decreasing
to a ultimate trend rate of 4.05o/o over 13 year period.
Initial trend s tartin g at 5.1,0o/o and gradually decreasing
to a ultimate trend rate of 4.05%o over 17 year period.

Health Care Trend Rates (Pre-65)

Health Cate Trend Rates (Posr65)

Chanses in Assumouons and Benefit Terms

Thete were no changes in benefit terms since the prior measurement date. The following changes of
assumptions were made by the Kentucky Legislature and reflected in the valuation performed as of June
30,2079 as follows:

o The assumed discount rate changed from 5.85o/o to 5.680/o
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9, Other Post-Employment Benefits, Continued

Chanses Since Measurement Date

There were no changes between the measurement date of the collective net OPEB liabiJity and the
employer's repoting date.

Plan Fiduciarv Net Position

Detailed information about the CERS fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued
I(entucky Retirement Systems Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

Pavables to the OPEB PIan

At June 30,2020, the City reported a payable of $77,342 and $1,504 for non-hazardous and hazardous
employees, tespectively.

L0. Defetred Compensation

The City allows all eligible employees to participate in deferred compensadon plans administered by the
I(entucky Public Employees' Deferred Compensation Authority. The I(entucky Public Employees'
Deferred Compensation Authodty is authodzed under KRS 1,8A.230 to 1.8A.275 to provide
admrnistration of tax sheltered supplemental tetirement plans for all state, public school and university
employees and employees of local political subdivisions that have elected to paticipate. These deferred
compensadon plans petmit all full-time employees to defer a portion of their salary until futute years.
The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or
unfoteseeable emetgency. Paticipation by eligible employees in the defered compensation plans is
voluntary.

Historical trend information showing the I(entucky Public Employees' Deferred Compensation
Authority's progress in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due is presented in the
I(entucky Public Employees' Defemed Compensation Authodty's annual financial report. This report
may be obtained by writing the I(entucky Public Employees' Deferred Compensation Authority at 101

Sea Hero Road, Suite 110, Frankfort, KY 40601-8862, or by telephone at (502) 573-7925.

11. Othet Employee Benefits

Vacation leave is ctedited on each employee's anniversary date and must be taken by the end of the
calendat year. Any employee whose employment urith the City ends in retirement or with the employee
givrng proper notice and being in good standing shall be compensated for all unused vacation.

All full-time employees receive eight (8) hours sick leave credit fot each month of service up to a

maximum of 1,440 hours. Employees who retire from the City service are credited with additional
retirement benefits based on unused sick leave, at time of retirement.
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12. Interfund Transfers

Interfund transfers dunng the year endedJune 30,2020 were as follows:

Transfers In
General Watet & Sewer Gas Agency Total

Transfers Out
General

Water & Sewer

Gas

LGE,A

$:z $ $ $ 375,000

$ 629,998

$ 1,056,994

$ 333,893

629,492

960,000 96,994

333,893

51.6

Total $ 1,589,482 $ 805,887 $ St6 $ $ 2,395,995

The transfers ate primarily used to move funds ftom the proprietary funds to the General Fund to assist
rn providing general governmental, public safety, public works, and parks and recreation services.

ili. Contingencies

Undet the tetms of federal and state grants, pedodic audits are required and certain costs may be
questroned as not being apptopriate expenditures under the terms of the grants. Such audits could lead
to teimbursement to the grantor agencies. City management believes that disallowances, tf any, will be
rmmaterial.

The Natural Resoutce and Environmental Protection Cabinet of the Commonwealth of I(entucky has
issued an "agteed otder" with the City which relates to vadous violations of limits imposed under the
City's wastewatet permit issued by the Cabinet's Division of lVater. The City has engaged an engineedng
ftm to assist them rn developing and implementing a plan to address the corective measures
recommended by the Natutal Resoutces and Environmental Protection Cabinet. Should these items
cited for corrective action not be rectified in the near futute, the possibility exists that fines could be
levied against the City. A reasonable estimate of expected fines cannot be made.

The City completed Phase I construction in the second quarter of 201,3 on the initial phase of the
project to make imptovements to various wastewater, drainage and water lines for approximately $4.2
mrllron. Grant proceeds of apptoxrmately $2,925,000 approved by the I(entucky Infrastructure
Authority and the Govetnor's Office for Local Development to complete the initial phase of the
project were utilized. The City was approved in November 201.4 for a I(entucky Infrastrucrure
Authority (KIA) Federally Assisted S7astewater Revolving Loan Fund in the amount of $2,642,200 to
assist in funding Phase II of the Combined Sewet Separation Project. The City was awarded a

Community Development Block Grant in the amount of $1,000,000 in July 2075 to assist in Phase II
of the ptoject. Phase II construction was completed in the second quarter of 2017 for approximately
fi4,093,527. These improvements are pat of a corective plan with the National Resource and
Environmental Protection Cabinet of the Commonwealth of I(entucky relatmg to various violations of
the City's wastewater permrt. The remaimng estimated cost for Phase III of these improvements is
approximately $3,240,000. Phase III Design and Engineering are underway with an esamated start date
for work to begrn in summer of 2020. The City was scheduled to complete all phases of the project by
Decembet 2018 based on an agreement with the I(entucky Environmental Protection Cabinet. On
behave of the City, Smith Management Group sent a letter dated December 10,201,8 to the I(entuclry
Environmental Protection Cabinet requesting an extension for completion date of the final Phase
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13. Contingencies, Continued

(Phase III) of the Long-Tetm Control Plan GTCP). The City received a letter dated December 21.,

2078 from the I(entucky Environmental Protection Cabrnet requesting a meeting in Frankfort to
discuss the Department has regarding the tequest for extension. The meeting was held onJanuary 23,
2019. On behave of the City, Smith Management Group sent a letter dated December 6,2079 to the
I(entucky Environmental Ptotection Cabinet requesting an extension fot completion date of the final
Phase (Phase III) of the Long-Tetm Control Plan untii December 31,,2021,, The reason for this
request is due to the inabriity to begin construction because funding has not been secured for Phase III
of the LTCP sewet separadon project. On behalf of the City, Smith Management Group again sent a

letter dated September 22, 2020 to the I(entucky Environmental Protection Cabinet requesting an
additional stx (6) month extension for completion of the final Phase (Phase III) of the Long-Term
Control Plan untrlJuly 1,,2022, The teason for this request is due to the inabiJity to begin construction
because funding has not been secured for LTCP @hase III).

In Decembet 201,1, the City entered into anothet "agreed order" with the Natural Resource and
Envitonmental Protection Cabinet of the Commonwealth of Kentucky to identify and elrminate all
significant soutces of inflow/infi.lttation into the sewer collection system. The City has contracted with
Strand Associates, Inc. to assist them in developing and implementing a plan to address the corrective
measures recommended by the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Cabinet which
includes Slip ltning or replacing the sewer lines and replacing manholes from the treatment plant
through most of the Camp Breckiruidge fob C"ry) atea. The estimated cost opinion is $4,800,000 for
sewer replacement and sewet rehab fot the collection sewer. The trunk sewer will have to be sized after
the collection sewer is completed. The pteliminary cost for this is $3,800,000. Both include 25o/o

conungencies. In otder to fund the initial study and design of the Camp Breckenridge (|ob Cory) sewer
tehab ptoject, the City applied for a Fund "8" Lo^n through the I(entucky Infrastructure Authodty in
the amount of $260,000 rn April of 2076. On May 5,2076 the City request was approved. As of June
30,201,8, approximately $213,287 was spent out of this loan. Because the Fund "B" loan was not rolled
into a construction project, the City has been required to make annual payments of apptoximately
$46,000 until loan is paid off in J:ul;,e 2024. Union County has assisted Morganfield to secure Delta
RegionalAuthodty funding of $779,646 to replace sewers 1n7,360 linear feet of 8-inch sewer in the
Martin View Estates alea. This will help reduce the budgeted construction cost the City has to fund,
However, with inflation and cuffent market conditions, the projected cost of this project is sull about
$1,099,000. Sttand Associates, Inc. engrneers managed the cleaning and running cameras through the
existmg sewer system. In addition to the cameras they conducted smoke and dye tests as well to
conclude ther study. The City continues to have open conversation with county, state and federal
representatives with help from GRADD and Strand Associates, Inc., about the need for federal
infrastructure funding for this and other future proiects. In addition, most of the eqt,ipment and
stllrctures at Morganfield's Wastewater Tteatment Plant has reached their usefrrl life and needs
replacement to enable the plant to stay in compliance with KPDES perrnit requirements. Morganfield
has hired Strand Associates, Inc. to design the new upgrades to the plant but have not authorized
Strand to statt design. Sttand is assisting GRADD and Morganfield to secure funding for the project.
The total projected cost (engineering and construction) of the Treatment Plant project is $14,500,000.
Motganfield has been exploring the option of combining all three projects into one project in phases
and securing funding for all thtee projects as one big ptoject. Discussions with funding agencies are
strll on-gorng. The City is prioritizing securing as much grants as possible to fund these ptojects as the
City does not have the financial capability to currendy fund the entire cost of these projects even under
favotable loan terms.
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L4. Risk Management

The City is exposed to vatious risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omission; and natural disasters. The City contracts with Zurich American Insurance
Company for insurance covetage for these risks. The city pays a guaranteed fixed premium that
transfets these dsks to a third party and is not subject to any additional premiums for this policy year.

Coverage consists of $1,000,000 per occurrence with a $1,000,000 umbrella with no deductible on the
general liabiJity and auto liability, and a $2,500 deductible on the Public Officials LiabiJity, Employment
Practice Liabrhty and Law Enfotcement Liability. Coverage for propetty risk is $27,275,350 with a

deductible of $1,000 per occrurence with the exception of earthquake claims with a limit of $2,000,000
and a deductible of 2o/o not to exceed $25,000 per occr.urence and flood with a limit of $1,000,000 and a

deductible of $25,000 per occurrence.

15. Related Organizations

The City of Motganfield paticipates with the County to provide a vartenl of seryices with joint funding
from both orgatizaions. All entities operate independently with separate management personnel. The
following table outlines these otganiz,aions and the City's conftibution during the fiscal year ending

June 30,2020.

Oragruzai.Lon Contribution

Union County Planmng Commission

16. Concentrations of Sales

Natural Gas

$ 56,289

For the year endedJune 30, 2020,three industrial customers accounted for approximately $1,184,708 in
sales and surcharges fot a total of 49oh of the City's total gas operating revenues.

Water and Sewet

For the year ended June 30, 2020, three industtial customers accounted for approximately $1,345 ,793 ln
sales and surcharges fot a total of 460/o of the City's total water and sewer operating revenues.

L7. Subsequent Events

In pteparing these financial statements, the City has evaluated events and transactions for potenual
recognition or disclosute through February 5,2027, the date the financial statements were available to
be issued. Management is cutrently evaluating the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and has

concluded that while it is reasonably possible that the virus could have a negative effect on the City's
financial position and tesults of opetations, the specific impact is not readily detetminable as of the
date of these Frnancial statements. The financial statements do not inciude any adjustments that might
result from the outcome of thrs uncertainty.
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CITY OF MORGANFIELD, KENTUCKY
Statement of Revenues,

Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis -

General Fund
For the fiscal yeat ended June 30,2020

Revenues:

Taxes and related revenues

Service charges and fees

Licenses

Franchuse fees

Intergovernmental

Miscellaneous

Investment income

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:

Generai and administrative

Public safety:

Police and dispatch

Fire

Highways and streets

Public works

Parks and recreation

Debt Service:

Principal

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Deficiency of revenues over expenditures

Othet financing soulces (uses):

Note proceeds

Sale of municipal properry

Operating transfers in

C)perating transfers out

Total other f,rnancing sources

Excess (dehciency) ofrevenues and other sources

over expenditures and other uses

Fund balance, beginning ofyeat

7,304,700

525,600

6,100

206,000

362,554

185,200

375

7,376,894

531,161

6,950

257,404

372,301.

757,602

808

1,390,93 8

513,622

5,850

237,474

86,395

168,850

616

General Fuad
Budgeted Amounts Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Variance with
Final BudgetOriginal Final Actual

$ $ $ $ 14,044

(17,s3e)

(1,100)

(19,930)

(28s,906)

11,248

(1e2)

2,590,529 2,703,720 2,403,746 Q99,374)

481,058

7,281,666

674,974

848,532

373,150

52,738

6,000

60,000

498,547

7,285,702

674,232

867,551

448,520

30,641

512,608

1.,257,690

666,231

863,753

448,513

16,209

7,328

104,434

(14,061)

34,012

8,001

3,798

7

74,433

(7,328)

(104,434)

3,778,058 3,805,193 3,970,765 a9?!!)

(1,187,52e) (1,102,073) (1,467,01e) (3s7,618)

2,000

7,185,529

67,69L

70,779

1,031,354

67,691.

1,720

7,637,706

(375,000)

(6e,see)

605,752

(375,000)

1,787,529 1 702,073 1.,330,9!7 't6"t,753

(136,103)

374,778

(1e6,466)

(40,822)415,000 415,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CITY OF MORGANFIELD, KENTUCKY
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis-
Local Government Economic Assistance
For the fiscalyear endedJune 30r2020

Budgeted Amounts

Revenues:

Taxes and related revenues

Service charges and fees

Licenses

Franchises

Intergovernmental

Miscellaneous revenue

Investment income

Original

Local Government Economic Assistance

Final Actual

Favotable

(Unfavorable)
Variance with
Final Budget

$

(27,812)

$ $ $

150,800

1,400

504,023

1,081

476,271.

1,081 (0)

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

Generd and adminis trative

Public safety:

Police

Fire

Highways and streets

Public works

Recreation

Capital ouday

Total expenditures

Exc e s s (de ficiency) of revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Operating transfers in

Operating transfers out

Total other financing uses

Excess (defrciency) ofrevenues and other sources

over expenditures and other uses

Fund balance, beginning ofyex

Fund balance, end ofyear $ eq+,sas $ 890,318 $ :Oe,Z66 $ (521,552)

752,200 505,104 477,291 Q7,813)

89,936

317,425

149,841 149,853 (12)

474,945 99,580 315,365

407,367 564,786 249,433 315,353

(2s5,161) (59,682) 227,858 287,540

(333,8e3) (333,8e3)

(333,8e3) (333,893)

(255,161)

950,000

(se,682)

950,000

(106,03s)

474,801

(46,353)

(475,199)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CITY OF MORGANFIELD, KENTUCKY
Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
County Emplol,ees Retirement System

Non-hazardous

City's proportion of the net pension liability

City's proportionate share of the net pension liability

Ciry's covered-employee payroll

City's proportionate share of the net pensioo liabiliry
as a percentage of it covered employee payroll

Plan Ftduciary net position as a percentage of the total
pension liability.

Hazardous

City's proportion of the net pension ltability

City's ptoportionate share of the net pension liability

City's covered-employee paytoll

City's proportionate share of the net pension liability
as a percentage ofit covered employee payroll

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
pension liability.

Last 10 Fiscal Years *

2020 2019 2018 20t? 2016 2015

0.08705% 0.08341% 0.08316% 0.08288% 0.07960% 0.07406%

$ 6,122,336 $ 5,079,801 $ 4,867,318 $ 4p80,449 $ 3,446,838 $ 2,402,752

$ 2,248,944 $ 2,119,082 $ 2,071,030 $ 2,023,802 $ 1,918,891 $ 1,754,447

272.230/o 239.720/o 23502yo 201.62% 779.630/o 736.95y0

50.45% 53.54% 53.30% 55.50% 59.97% 66.8Oyo

2020 2019 2018 20t7 2016 20ls

0.02923% 0.02934% 0.03098% 0.04107% 0.04754% 0.05259%

$ 807,308 $ 709,503 $ 693,198 $ 704,771 $ 729,792 $ 632,004

$ 166,450 $ 163,266 $ 170,247 $ 213,532 $ 243,774 $ 266,353

485.02o/o 434.57oh 407.17o/o 330.05% 300.710h 237.28Yo

46.63% 49.26% 49.80% 53.950h 57.52%o 63.460k

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year vere determined as of one-year pdor to the frscal year end.
Fiscal year 2015 was the hrst year of implementation.

* The schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Addrtional years of supplemmtary infomation will
be prouded as this information becomes available.

The accompanying notes are an integnl pan of these Frnancial satements
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CITY OF MORGANFIELD, KENTUCKY
Schedule of Contributione
County Employees Retirement System - Pension

Non-hazardous

I-ast 10 Fiscal Years *

2020 20t9 2018 2016 2015 2014

Contractually required contributions

Contributions in relation to the contractually required contributions

Contribution (excess) defi ciency

City's covered-employee payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

$ 445,115 $

(445.1 15)

364,170 | 306,843 $ 288,909 $

064.770\ (306.843)

251,357 $

(251,351)

339,068 $

(339,068)

331,41 5

(331.415)

$ $ $

i 2298,987 i 2248,944 $ 2,119,082 $ 2,071,030 $ 2,023,808 $

19.36% 16.22Yo 14.48% 13.950/o 12.42y"

1,918,891 $ 1,154,447

12.75% 13.74%

2020 2019 2018 2017 20t6 2016 2014Hazardous

Contractually required conEibutions

Contdbutions in telation to the contractually required contdbutions

Contribution (excess) defi ciency

City's covered-employee payroll

Contributions u a percmtage ofcovered-employee payroll

a 51,120 $

(51.120)

41,396 $

(41.396)

43223 I
(43,223)

83,433 $

(83,433)

95,088

(95,088)

36245 $ 36,961 I
(36245\

$ $ $

$ 170,060 $

30.06%

166,450 $

24.87%

163266 $

22.20%

170247 $

21.71%

213,342 i
20.26%

243,174 $

20.73%

266,353

21.710k

*'l'hc amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as ofone-year prior to the fiscal year end.

Iriscal vear 201 5 was the 6rst year of implemenradon.

* fhc schcdulc is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years ofsupplementary information will
bc provided as this infotmation becomes available.

The accmpanviog notes are rn integnl pert of these 6oocial statemeots
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CITY OF MORGANFIELD, KENTUCKY
Notes to Required Supplementary Infotmation - Pension
june 30, 2020

Changes of benefit terms: The following changes were made by the I(entucky Legislarure and
reflected in the valuation performed as of June 30 listed below:

2074:

A cash balance plan was introduced for members whose participation date is on or after

Jantary 7,2074.

Changes of assumptions: The followrng changes wete made by the I(entucky Legislature and

reflected in the valuation performed as of June 30listed below:

20r5:

' The assumed investmentrate of retutnwas decteased from 7.75o/o to7.50o/o.
. The assumed rate of inflation was reduced fuom3.50o/o to 3.25o/o.

' The assumed tate of wage inflation was reduced from 7.00%o to 0.75o/o.

' Payroll growth assumption was teduced from 4.50o/o to 4.00o/o.

' The mortality table used fot active members is RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table projected
with scale BB to 2013 (multiplied by 50o/o for males and 30o/o for females).

' Fot healthy retired members and beneficiades, the motality table used is the RP-2000
Combined Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 (set back 1 year for females). For
disabled members, the RP-2000 Combined Disabled Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to
2013 (set back 4 years for males) is used fot the period aftet disability retirement. There is some
margrn rn the current motality tables fot possible future improvement in mortality rates and
that margrn will be reviewed again when the next experience rnvestigation is conducted.

' The assumed tates of reti.rement, Withdrawal and Disability were updated to more accurately
reflect experience,

2077:

' The assumed investment rate of refurn was decteased from 7 .50%o to 6.250/o.
' The assumed tate of inflation was reduced from3,2\o/o to 2.30o/o.
' The assumed rate of wase rnflation decreased bv 0.95%.
' Payroll growth ,.r,rmpti6r, was reduced from 4l,O}oto to 2.OOo/o.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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CITY OF MORGANFIELD, KENTUCKY
Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability
County Employees Retirement System

Non-hazardous

City's proportion of the net OPEB liability

City's proporuonate share of the net OPEB liability

City's covered-employee papoll

Ciry's proportiooate share of the net OPEB liabiliry
as a percentage of it covered employee payroll

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage ofthe total
OPEB liability.

Hazardous

2020 2019 2018

0.08703% 0.08341,% 0.08316%

$ 1.,463,822 $ 1,490,939 $ 1,671,700

fi 2,249,944 $ 2,1'tg,0g2 $ 2,071,030

65.09Yo 69.88% 80.72%

6044% 57.62Yo 52.400/0

2020 20t9 2018

Last 10 Fiscal Years *

City's proportion of the net OPEB liability

City's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability

City's covered-employee payoll

City's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability
as a percentage of it covered employee payroll

Plan fiduciary net position as a perceotage ofthe total
OPEB liability.

129.89Yo 128.12% 750.45o/o

64.44% 64.240 59.000/o

0.02922o/o

$ 216,794 $

$ 166,450 $

0.02934%

209,792 $

763,266 $

0.03098%

256,136

770,247

* The amounts ptesented for each fiscal year were determined as of one-yeat prior to the fiscal year end.
Fiscal yeat 2018 was the fust year of implementation.

* The schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years of supplementary information will
be provided as this information becomes available.

The accompanying flotes are an integral part of these frnancial statements
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CITY OF MORGANFIELD, KENTUCKY
Schedule of Contributions
County Employees Retirement System - OPEB

Non-hazardous

Last 10 Fiscal Years *

2020 2019 2018

Contracnrally required contributions

Conuibutions in relation to the contactually tequired contributions

Contributjon (excess) defrciency

City's covered-employee payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

Flazardous

$ 109,780 $

(109.780)

118,292 $ 99,597

(e9,597)(11 8,292)

$ 2,2gg,gg7 $

4.780h

2,248,944 $

5.26%

2,179,092

4.700/o

2020 20L9 2078

Contractually required contributions

Contributions in relation to the contractually required contributions

Contribution (excess) deficiency

City's covered-employee payroll

Conuibutions as a percentage of covered-employee payroli

$ 76,190 $

(16,190)

71,427 $

w,a7)

75,265

(15,265)

S$$

$ 170,060 $

9.52%o

166,450 $

10.47%

763,266

9.35%

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of one-year prior to the fiscal year end.

Fiscal year 2018 was the first year of implementation.

* The schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years of supplementary information will
be provided as this informatjon becomes available.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CITY OF MORGANFIELD, KENTUCKY
Notes to Required Supplementary Information - OPEB

]une 30,2020

Changes of benefit terms:

None

Changes of assumptions: The following changes were made by the I(entuclly Legislatute and

reflected in the valuation performed as ofJune 30 listed below:

2077:

' The assumed investment rate of retutlr was decreased ftom7 .50o/o to 6.25oh.

' The assumed rate of inflation was teduced fuom 3.25o/o to 2.30o/o.

' The assumed rate of wage inflation decreased by 0.95%.

' Paytoll growth assumption was reduced from 4.00oh to 2.00o/o.
. The single discount rate changed from 6.85% to 5.85%

201,9:

. The single discount rate changed ftom 5.85% to 5.680/o.

The accompanying notes are an integml pat of the financial statements
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trSyIKE,MPE,R
IDSuTA GKUUI'..,
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OYER FINANCIAI
REPORTING ANID ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOWRNMENT
AUDITING STAAIDARDS

To the Mayor and City Council
City of Morganfreld, I(entucky

!7e have audited, in accotdance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standatds applicabie to financial audits contained ln GoaernmentAaditingStandardt issued by
the Compttollet General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities and each major fund, of the City of Morganfield, I(entucky, ,r of and for the year
endedJune 30, 2020,and the telated notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City
of Motganfield, I(entuclry's basic financial statements and have issued our report theteon dated February 5,

2021.

Intemal Control over Financial Repoting

In planmng and petforming our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Morganfield,
I(entuclry's intemal control over financial reporting (intetnal control) to determine the audit procedures that
ate apptoptiate in the ckcumstances for the pulpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements,
but not fot the pu{pose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Morganfield,
I(entuclry's internal conftol. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of
Motganfield, I(entucky's internal control.

A defciengt in internal contml eists when the design or operation of. a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and cortect,
misstatements on a timely basis. A mateial aeaknes is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a mateial misstatement of the entity's
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corected on a timely basis. A signzfcant def.cienry is

a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a mateial weakness,

yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the fust paragraph of this

secdon and was not designed to identi$, all deficiencies in internal conttol that might be material weaknesses

or significant deficiencies and therefore, matedal weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were

not identified. We did identify certain deficiencies in intemal control, desctibed in the accompanying

schedule of findings and questioned costs that we consider to be material weaknesses. [2020-001 and 2020-
0o2l

Compliance and Othet Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Morganfield, I(entuclry's financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain

provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a

direcr and materiat effect ,.01#fu#f,S,1tr3u.:6 95.8t"..,fr1":;?l?ffi::[frnourlts. 
However, providing an

Phone: (270)389-1239 Fax: (270) 389-4662 kempercpa.com
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opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion, The results of out tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters
that are required to be reported under CoaentmentAaditingStandards.

City of Morganfield, Kentucky's Response to Findings

City of Motganfield, I(entucky's tesponse to the findings identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, City of Morganfield, I(entucky's response was not
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we
express no opinion on it.

Puqpose of this Report

The putpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the tesults of that tesong, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's rnternal
conuol or on compliance. This report is an integtal patt of an audrt performed rn accordance with
Couernment Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this
communicauon is not surtable for any other purpose.

(r"-{, CPA ilru"^rrp u-A

I(emper CPA Group LLP
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants

Morganfield, I(entucky
February 5,2021




